
 

TUPELO REGULAR CITY COUNCIL 

MEETING 

OCTOBER 03, 2023 AT 6:00 PM 

CHURCH STREET SCHOOL AUDITORIUM 

445 NORTH CHURCH STREET 

AGENDA 

CALL TO ORDER:                         COUNCIL PRESIDENT TRAVIS BEARD 

INVOCATION:                                COUNCIL MEMBER CHAD MIMS 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:       COUNCIL MEMBER TRAVIS BEARD 

CONFIRMATION OR AMENDMENT TO THE AGENDA AND AGENDA ORDER 

PROCLAMATIONS, RECOGNITIONS AND REPORTS AGENDA 

PROCLAMATIONS 

1. IN THE MATTER OF PROCLAMATION FOR PIOMINKO DAY 

RECOGNITION GIRL/BOY SCOUTS 

EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION 

PUBLIC RECOGNITION 

MAYOR'S REMARKS 

(CLOSE REGULAR MEETING OPEN PUBLIC AGENDA) 

PUBLIC AGENDA 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

2. IN THE MATTER OF PUBLIC HEARING FOR LOT MOWING TN 

3. IN THE MATTER OF PUBLIC HEARING FOR DEMOLITION OF PROPERTIES 

LOCATED AT 1505 HILLSDALE DRIVE, 1518 CENTRAL AVENUE, AND 135 

WARREN LANE TN 

- 1 -



APPEALS 

CITIZEN HEARING 

(CLOSE PUBLIC AGENDA AND OPEN REGULAR SESSION) 

ACTION AGENDA 

ROUTINE AGENDA 

4. IN THE MATTER OF MINUTES OF SEPTEMBER 19, 2023 REGULAR COUNCIL 

MEETING 

5. IN THE MATTER OF BILL PAY KH 

CHAD MIMS 

BUDDY PALMER 

ROSIE JONES 

6. IN THE MATTER OF ADVERTISING AND PROMOTIONAL ITEMS KH 

7. IN THE MATTER OF MUNICIPAL COMPLIANCE QUESTIONNAIRE KH 

8. IN THE MATTER OF APPOINTMENT OF MONTGOMERY BERRY TO POLICE 

ADVISORY BOARD – WARD 1 TJ 

9. IN THE MATTER OF APPOINTMENT OF STEVEN COON TO POLICE ADVISORY 

BOARD – WARD 5 TJ 

10. IN THE MATTER OF AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CITY CLERK TO 

EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT ON BEHALF OF THE CITY OF TUPELO BETWEEN 

THE MISSISSIPPI DEPARTMENT OF ARCHIVES AND HISTORY AND BELINDA 

STEWART ARCHITECTS, PA RELATING TO A HISTORIC STRUCTURES REPORT 

AND ENGINEERING REPORT FOR SPRINGHILL MISSIONARY BAPTIST CHURCH 

TN 

11. IN THE MATTER OF REVIEW/APPROVE PROPERTIES FOR LOT MOWING TN 

12. IN THE MATTER OF REVIEW/APPROVE PROPERTIES FOR DEMOLITION TN 

13. IN THE MATTER OF REVIEW/APPROVE LIEN RESOLUTIONS FOR UNPAID LOT 

MOWING INVOICES  TN 

14. IN THE MATTER OF REVIEW/APPROVE LIEN RESOLUTION FOR UNPAID 

DEMOLTION COSTS OF 1100 CHAPMAN DRIVE  TN 

15. IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF MAJOR THOROUGHFARE COMMITTEE 

MEETING MINUTES JULY 10, 2023 DRB 

- 2 -



16. IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF MAJOR THOROUGHFARE COMMITTEE 

MEETING MINUTES AUGUST 14, 2023 DRB 

17. IN THE MATTER OF REJECTING REVERSE BID #2023-045PD FOR EOD ROBOT JQ 

18. IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF UNITED STATES MARSHALS SERVICE MS 

TASK FORCE ADDENDUM ORDER JQ 

19. IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL PROPOSED CHANGE ORDER 1 FOR VAN BUREN 

DRAINAGE IMPROVMENTS ARPA 2023-032PW CW 

20. IN THE MATTER OF CONTRACT APPROVAL ENDVILLE RD WIDENING PROJECT 

BID NO. 2023-022PW - CW 

21. IN THE MATTER OF BID APPROVAL 2023-041PW CITY HALL GENERATOR 

LABOR AND MATERIALS - CW 

22. IN THE MATTER OF AWARD OF BID # 2023-044WL FOR B&B SEWER OUTFALL 

(SRF)  JT  

23. IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF THE TRAFFIC COMMITTEE MINUTES OF 

SEPTEMBER 21, 2023 JT  

24. IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF AN AMENDMENT TO THE CITY OF TUPELO 

EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK POLICY 608: DRUG AND ALCOHOL-FREE WORKPLACE 

SR 

25. IN THE MATTER OF AN ORDER AUTHORIZING THE CONVEYANCE OF CERTAIN 

REAL PROPERTY LOCATED AT 1112 CHAPMAN DRIVE TO THE 

NEIGHBORHOOD DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION SR 

(CLOSE REGULAR SESSION) 

STUDY AGENDA 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

ADJOURNMENT 

- 3 -



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Scott Costello, Communications Director 

DATE September 27, 2023 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF PROCLAMATION FOR PIOMINKO DAY 
  

 

Request:  

Mayor Jordan will present a proclamation for Piominko Day 2023. 

 

- 4 -

Item # 1.



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

OFFICE OF THE MAYOR 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PROCLAMATION 

WHEREAS, Revered Chickasaw leader, Piominko, also known as “Mountain Leader,” was born and resided in the 
heart of the historic Chickasaw Homeland, located in present-day Tupelo, MS, from approximately 1750 to 1798; and  
 
WHEREAS, Piominko was the most influential and important Chickasaw ally of the United States during the early 
formation of the new republic, and his leadership was critical both for the United States and the Chickasaw Nation. 
 
WHEREAS, During the American Revolutionary War, Piominko was given a commission as an officer by President 
George Washington, and in 1794 he was presented with a peace medal by President Washington both for his service 
in the Revolution and his invaluable efforts in formalizing peaceful relations between the two nations; and  
 
WHEREAS, Piominko and President Washington signed the Treaty between the Chickasaw and United States of 
1786, also known as the Treaty of Hopewell which formalized the Chickasaw Nation’s alliance with the fledgling 
United States government and formally defined the tribal boundaries, and Piominko acted as a Chickasaw diplomat 
in meetings with southeastern tribes, state governors and President Washington; and  
 
WHEREAS, in 2005 the Rotary Club of Tupelo was instrumental in the commissioning and dedication of a 6-foot-
tall Piominko statue, which now stands prominently in front of City Hall, and to this day, Rotary continues to work to 
increase public awareness of Piominko’s legacy and historical significance in Tupelo and North Mississippi, and 
 
WHEREAS, in 2008 the Chickasaw Nation proclaimed the 2nd Monday in October as Piominko Day, to be celebrated 
annually in perpetuity, and Piominko is recognized as a seminal figure in the history of Tupelo and Northeast 
Mississippi; and  
 
WHEREAS, The Chickasaw Inkana Foundation, along with the Daughters of the American Revolution and the City 
of Tupelo will continue to work with the Chickasaw Nation and other regional partners to increase awareness of the 
importance of Chickasaw culture and history and preserve, protect and interpret Chickasaw culture and history in the 
historic Chickasaw Homeland; 
  
NOW THEREFORE, I, Todd Jordan, Mayor of Tupelo, Mississippi, do hereby proclaim October 9, 2023, as  
 
 
 
 
In Tupelo, Mississippi, and encourage all citizens to recognize Piominko for his extraordinary leadership of the 
Chickasaw people and his dedicated efforts to secure peace between the United States and the Chickasaw Nation.   
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and caused the Seal of the City of Tupelo to be affixed this 
the 9th day of October, the year of our Lord two thousand and twenty three. 
 
ATTEST:                 ____________________ 
         Todd Jordan, Mayor 
____________________       

Kim Hanna, City Clerk       ____________________ 
         Bill Dickerson, President 
         Tupelo Rotary Club 
____________________        
Brady Davis, CEO       ____________________ 
Chickasaw Inkana Foundation      Sarah Harris, Regent 

Mary Stuart Chapter, MSSDAR 
 

Piominko day 

Piominko day 

- 5 -

Item # 1.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Tanner Newman, Director of Development Services 

DATE October 3, 2023 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF PUBLIC HEARING FOR LOT MOWING TN 
  

 

Request:  

Public Hearing for properties on final lot mowing list. Preliminary list is attached. Final list will 

be provided prior to the meeting.  

- 6 -

Item # 2.



Preliminary Lot Mowing Report for October 3, 2023 
 

 Violation Ref Parcel Location Owner Owner Address Owner City State Zip Inspector 

1.  45037 089N3106500 108-176 S 
GLOSTER ST 

BUCY JAMES 
EARL JR & ANITA 
BUCY LONG 

1651 BIRMINGHAM RIDGE RD SALTILLO, MS 38866 SB 

2.   45043 077H2514701 109 
BRIARWOOD 
CIR 

GOOCH JASON 111 BRIARWOOD TUPELO, MS 38804 TP 

3.   45048 088Q3404300 143 S 
FEEMSTER LAKE 
RD 

TARPLEY 
RICHARD M JR 

143 S FEEMSTER LAKE RD TUPELO, MS 38804 RS 

4.   45052 088Q3401600 1911 MARTIN 
HILL DR 

PETTIGREW 
PROPERTIES LLC 

281 MCNEECE ST TUPELO, MS 38804 RS 

5.   45058 101G0110400 1203 
MOCKINGBIRD 
LN 

PITTS HOYET L & 
HELEN R 

P O BOX 3098 TUPELO, MS 38803 SB 

6.   45064 106A1400700 2838 EVANS CIR BUGGS DARRIN L 103 ROAD 9 HOULKA, MS 38850 RS 

7.   45065 106A1402800 2861 EVANS CIR HOOKS HENRY E 2861 EVANS CIRCLE TUPELO, MS 38801 RS 

8.   45067 105D1502100 2876 BEASLEY 
DR 

RAY EARNESTINE 
B (LE) 

168 REED CIRCLE MEDINA, TN 38355 RS 

9.   45068 105D1502300 2906 BEASLEY 
DR 

LUTHER 
PROPERTIES LLC 

2180 VETERANS HWY EAST PONTOTOC, MS 38863 RS 

10.   45070 105D1505400 3037 BEASLEY 
DR 

TUCKER JAMES L 
& ELNOIS R (LE) 

271 COUNTY ROAD 1467 PLANTERSVILLE, MS 38862 RS 

11.   45071 105D1505000 3075 MOORE 
AVE 

MOORE TONY A 
SR & BERNICE 

109  BELWOOD COVE BELDEN, MS 38826 RS 

12.   45073 105H1507200 3438 BROOKS 
ST 

ALIM 
CHRISTOPHER 
CONWILL 

3135 CAROLINA ROAD NETTLETON, MS 38858 RS 

- 7 -

Item # 2.



Preliminary Lot Mowing Report for October 3, 2023 
 

 Violation Ref Parcel Location Owner Owner Address Owner City State Zip Inspector 

13.  45075 101H0111700 1007 COOLIDGE HARDY JAMES L 
& DAPHNE A 

1007 COOLIDGE TUPELO, MS 38801 SB 

14.   45077 101H0121900 1700 FILLMORE 
DR 

MAULDIN BOBBY 
& JOHN ASHLEY 

1700 FILMORE TUPELO, MS 38801 SB 

15.   45080 101B0213000 418 LAKEVIEW 
DR 

TTLBL LLC 4747 EXECUTIVE DR STE 510 SAN DIEGO, CA 92121 TP 

16.   45081 077P3510300 208 NANNEY 
DR 

MEMPHIS 
WEALTH 
BUILDERS LLC 

P O BOX 558 NESBIT, MS 38651 TP 

17.   45088 077F2617900 709 LAR-ELI-DO 
DR 

PAYNE THOMAS 
JR 

113 WAYSIDE TUPELO, MS 38804 TP 

18.   45090 077F2618700 706 LAR-ELI-DO 
DR 

BURT BEN J & 
CAROL A 

706 LAR ELI DO TUPELO, MS 38801 TP 

19.   45091 105D1503500 3064 MOORE 
AVE 

RICHARDSON 
MEGAN 

P O BOX 87 RED BANKS, MS 38661 RS 

20.   45092 077P3520900 2313 RASBERRY 
ST 

FELLS TUMAHA 2313 RASBERRY ST TUPELO, MS 38801 TP 

21.   45097 089J3112000 638 ALLEN ST STEVEN ANDREW 
FAIRLEY 

638 ALLEN ST TUPELO, MS 38804 DS 

22.   45098 089J3101700 507 MAGNOLIA 
DR 

JUSTICE C ALLEN 
& LEAH 

164 RD 461 SALTILLO, MS 38866 DS 

23.   45101 077Q3604200 1606 ECKFORD 
ST 

COMPLEO LLC P O BOX 691 TUPELO, MS 38802 SB 

24.   45102 112F0401300 1553 S 
FEEMSTER LAKE 
RD 

THOMPSON 
KELLY WAYNE & 
MARY E 

1553 FEEMSTER LAKE ROAD TUPELO, MS 38804 RS 

- 8 -

Item # 2.



Preliminary Lot Mowing Report for October 3, 2023 
 

 Violation Ref Parcel Location Owner Owner Address Owner City State Zip Inspector 

25.  45105 077Q3604300 200 BOWEN ST NORTH 
MISSISSIPPI REAL 
ESTATE & LAND 
LLC 

103 BIENVILLE CIR TUPELO, MS 38801 SB 

26.   45107 077Q3604400 208 BOWEN ST WILSON BOBBY L 604 RACOVE DR TUPELO, MS 38801 SB 

27.   45108 077Q3602500 205 BOWEN ST HARRIS JAMES H 
& MARY N 

205 BOWEN TUPELO, MS 38801 SB 

28.   45112 077D2514000 1202 JOYNER 
AVE 

JAN & TERRY LLC 1211 FLETCHER ST TUPELO, MS 38804 TP 

29.   45114 075R2207600 3794 FAIR OAKS 
DR 

WHITENTON & 
WHITENTON 

P O BOX 2201 TUPELO, MS 38803 TP 

30.   45117 077P3502700 215 
MONUMENT 
DR 

GRAB THE MAP 
LLC 

3195 MCCULLOUGH BLVD BELDEN, MS 38826 DS 

31.   45118 077P3505400 2105 GLENDALE 
ST 

FUTURE HOPE 
RENTALS LLC 

777 CR 251 SALTILLO, MS 38866 DS 

32.   45122 075R2207800 3784 FAIR OAKS 
DR 

BURCHAM HELEN 
M 

3784 FAIR OAKS BELDEN, MS 38826 TP 

33.   45125 101D0120300 1304 VAN 
BUREN AVE 

PRESLEY 
ELIZABETH 

1304 VAN BUREN TUPELO, MS 38801 TP 

34.   45126 088N3302200 206 CANAL ST PRATT JENNIFER 1165 HWY 47 HOUSTON, MS 38851 RS 

35.   45127 112A0408400 515 LAKE ST BISHOP 
CHARLINE 

103 HIGH FOREST LANE TUPELO, MS 38801 RS 

36.   45129 112A0408200 525 LAKE ST BERRY DIERDRE 525 LAKE ST TUPELO, MS 38804 RS 

- 9 -

Item # 2.



Preliminary Lot Mowing Report for October 3, 2023 
 

 Violation Ref Parcel Location Owner Owner Address Owner City State Zip Inspector 

37.  45133 112A0406800 904 MARTIN ST PETTIGREW 
MICHAEL C & 
JENIFER C 

281 MCNEECE STREET TUPELO, MS 38804 RS 

38.   45135 077Q3626200 301 HANCOCK 
ST 

KEITH 
INVESTMENTS 
LLC 

P O BOX 870 VERONA, MS 38879 SB 

39.   45140 075G1501700 MCCULLOUGH 
BLVD 

SALTILLO 45 LLC 210 E MAIN ST TUPELO, MS 38804 TP 

40.   45142 101B0221900 2306 
ENGLEWOOD 
DR 

GARMON 
DANIELLE S 

2306 ENGLEWOOD DR TUPELO, MS 38801 RS 

41.   45143 07602301100 2139-2143 
MCCULLOUGH 
BLVD 

DANIELS BILLY & 
JEAN 

P O BOX 159 BELDEN, MS 38826 TP 

42.   45164 083U0709900 SOUTHERN DR MILL CREEK LLC P O BOX 3088 TUPELO, MS 38803 TP 

43.          

44.          

45.          

46.          

47.          

48.          

 

- 10 -

Item # 2.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Tanner Newman, Director of Development Services 

DATE October 3, 2023 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF PUBLIC HEARING FOR DEMOLITION OF 

PROPERTIES LOCATED AT 1505 HILLSDALE DRIVE, 1518 CENTRAL 

AVENUE, AND 135 WARREN LANE TN 
  

 

Request:  

Public Hearing for demolition of substandard structures on the following properties: 

 

1505 Hillsdale Drive (PARCEL #088T-27-003-00) 

1518 Central Avenue (PARCEL #077Q-36-156-00) 

135 Warren Lane (PARCEL #079V-32-012-00) 

 

 

- 11 -

Item # 3.



- 12 -

Item # 3.



- 13 -

Item # 3.



- 14 -

Item # 3.



- 15 -

Item # 3.



- 16 -

Item # 3.



- 17 -

Item # 3.



- 18 -

Item # 3.



- 19 -

Item # 3.



- 20 -

Item # 3.



- 21 -

Item # 3.



- 22 -

Item # 3.



- 23 -

Item # 3.



- 24 -

Item # 3.



- 25 -

Item # 3.



- 26 -

Item # 3.



- 27 -

Item # 3.



- 28 -

Item # 3.



- 29 -

Item # 3.



- 30 -

Item # 3.



- 31 -

Item # 3.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Missy Shelton, Council Clerk 

DATE September 25, 2023 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF MINUTES OF SEPTEMBER 19, 2023 REGULAR 

COUNCIL MEETING 
  

 

Request:  

For your approval pending legal review. 

 

- 32 -

Item # 4.



REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MUNICIPAL MINUTES CITY OF TUPELO 

STATE OF MISSISSIPPI 

SEPTEMBER 19, 2023 

Be it remembered that a regular meeting of the Tupelo City Council was held in the Council Chambers 

in the City Hall building on Tuesday, September 19, 2023, at 6:00 p.m. with the following in attendance: 

Council Members Chad Mims, Lynn Bryan, Travis Beard, Nettie Davis, Buddy Palmer, and Janet 

Gaston; Ben Logan, City Attorney, and Missy Shelton, Clerk of the Council.  Council Member Rosie 

Jones was absent. Council Member Gaston led the invocation. Council Member Palmer led in the pledge 

of allegiance.  

 

Council President Travis Beard called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 

CONFIRMATION OR AMENDMENT TO THE AGENDA AND AGENDA ORDER 

Council Member Davis moved, seconded by Council Member Palmer, to approve the agenda and 

agenda order, as presented. Of those present, the vote was unanimous in favor.  

PUBLIC RECOGNITION 

Council Member Gaston asked everyone to remember Judge Aycock and his family for the loss of his 

son. 

Council Member Palmer introduced his wife, Cecelia, his son, Damon, and his daughter-in-law, Erica. 

Council Member Davis thanked everyone for supporting the Communities Forward Festival last 

weekend. 

MAYOR'S REMARKS 

Mayor Todd Jordan reported that there was a good crowd at the Communities Forward Festival. The 

renovation of the Council chambers will begin right away and the meetings will be held at the Church 

Street School until the renovation is complete. Fall into Tupelo begins in October and the Park & 

Recreation statewide conference is in Tupelo this week. 

IN THE MATTER OF PUBLIC HEARING FOR LOT MOWING  

No one appeared to speak on the properties listed on the final lot mowing list. 

088Q3403100  481 S FEEMSTER LAKE RD 

088N3304700  335 CANAL ST 

088N3304700  335 CANAL ST 

088N3304700  335 CANAL ST 

088N3302300  208 CANAL ST 

- 33 -

Item # 4.



088N3305700  151 CANAL ST 

088N3305900  147 CANAL ST 

101B0216812  723 ASHLEY LN 

089B3004000  1259 N GREEN ST 

077C2508000  1303 ACKIA TRL 

089F3009200  428 TOLBERT ST 

089F3013300  431 TOLBERT ST0 

89B3003900  1261 N GREEN ST 

101M1217500  1197 S GLOSTER ST 

101M1217400  1195 S GLOSTER ST 

113A0610100  619 CROSSOVER RD 

113A0608800  718 CROSSOVER RD 

077Q3619100  215 TEDFORD ST 

113J0702200  1103 CHICKASAW TRL 

113J0703800  1014 CHICKASAW TRL 

113E0605700  906 CHICKASAW TRL 

077P3500600  2411 DANNY ST 

IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF REGULAR MEETING ON SEPTEMBER 5 AND 

SPECIAL CALLED MEETING ON SEPTEMBER 12, 2023 

Council Member Palmer moved, seconded by Council Member Davis, to approve the minutes of the 

regular meeting of September 5 and special called meeting of September12, 2023. Of those present, the 

vote was unanimous in favor. 

IN THE MATTER OF BILL PAY  

Bills were reviewed at 4:30 p.m. by Council Members Beard, Gaston, Davis and Palmer. Council 

Member Davis moved, seconded by Council Member Gaston, to approve the payment of the checks, 

bills, claims and utility adjustments.  Of those present, the vote was unanimous in favor. APPENDIX A 

IN THE MATTER OF ADVERTISING AND PROMOTIONAL ITEMS  

Council Member Palmer moved, seconded by Council Member Bryan to approve the advertising and 

promotional items, as presented. Of those present, the vote was unanimous in favor. APPENDIX B 

Northeast MS Daily Journal $397.50    Congratulations to CDF for 75th year of Accomplishments  

Busylad                                 $579.60     Inflatables for Wear it Well Ribbon Cutting  

Busylad                                 $369.60     Real Men Stand up (Father & Son Day @ PAL)  

IN THE MATTER OF BUDGET AMENDMENT #11 FOR FY 2023 

Council Member Gaston moved, seconded by Council Member Palmer, to approve budget amendment 

#11 for FY 2023. Of those present, the vote was unanimous in favor. APPENDIX C 

IN THE MATTER OF FY 2024 PETTY CASH ACCOUNTS  

- 34 -

Item # 4.



Council Member Davis moved, seconded by Council Member Bryan, to approve the Petty Cash 

Accounts for FY2024, as submitted. Of those present, the vote was unanimous in favor. APPENDIX D 

IN THE MATTER OF THE FIRE & POLICE RETIREMENT  

Council Member Palmer moved, seconded by Council Member Bryan, to approve the "Resolution of the 

City Council of the City of Tupelo, Mississippi, Authorizing and Directing There Be A Two Percent 

(2%) Increase in the Benefits for All Members and Beneficiaries Receiving Retired Relief or Disability 

Relief Benefits from the Firemen’s And Policemen’s Disability and Relief Fund", giving those members 

a 2% increase. Of those present, the vote was unanimous in favor. APPENDIX E 

IN THE MATTER OF REQUEST TO CLOSE BANK ACCOUNT (E.P. BUS TURNAROUND)-

STATE FUNDS  

Council Member Janet Gaston recused herself for this item of business.  

 

Council Member Palmer moved, seconded by Council Member Mims, to approve an Order of the 

Governing Authorities of the City of Tupelo Authorizing the Closure of the Elvis Presley Bus 

Turnaround Special Project Fund at Cadence Bank. The vote was, as follows: 

 

Council Member Mims           AYE 

Council Member Bryan          AYE 

Council Member Beard          AYE 

Council Member Davis          AYE 

Council Member Palmer       AYE 

Council Member Gaston       RECUSED 

Council Member Jones         ABSENT 

 

APPENDIX F 

Council Member Gaston rejoined the meeting. 

IN THE MATTER OF RESOLUTION TO RAISE SANITATION RATE  

Council Member Mims moved, seconded by Council Member Palmer, to approve the Resolution 

Adopting Increase in Sanitation Rate Fees and Charges for Residential Customers. Of those present, the 

vote was unanimous in favor. APPENDIX G 

IN THE MATTER OF PROPERTIES FOR LOT MOWING  

Council Member Palmer moved, seconded by Council Member Gaston, to adjudicate the properties on 

the final lot mowing list as menaces to the public health, safety and welfare of the community and in 

need of cleaning and to approve their cleaning in accordance with Mississippi Code Annotated 21-19-

11. Of those present, the vote was unanimous in favor. APPENDIX H 

IN THE MATTER OF LIEN RESOLUTIONS FOR UNPAID LOT MOWING  

- 35 -

Item # 4.



Council Member Davis moved, seconded by Council Member Bryan, to approve Resolutions Assessing 

Judgment Liens Against Real Property for the Costs Associated with Lot Mowing in Accordance with 

Miss. Code Annotated § 21-19-11, for the following properties:  

414 LAKEVIEW 

107 LAKEVIEW 

100 ANDREW CIRCLE 

2308 TORREY STREET 

1507 TRACE AVENUE 

1407 GUN CLUB ROAD 

Of those present, the vote was unanimous in favor. APPENDIX I 

IN THE MATTER OF LIEN RESOLUTIONS FOR UNPAID DEMOLITIONS  

Council Member Palmer moved, seconded by Council Member Gaston, to approve a Resolution 

Adjudicating Cost and Assessing Lien Against Real Property, under Miss. Code Ann. 21-19-11(1972 as 

amended) for: 

209 FEEMSTER LAKE ROAD 

398 FEEMSTER LAKE ROAD 

735 SOUTH EASON BLVD 

1108 MARQUETTE 

Of those present, the vote was unanimous in favor. APPENDIX J 

IN THE MATTER OF PLANNING COMMITTEE MINUTES OF AUGUST 7, 2023  

Council Member Davis moved, seconded by Council Member Gaston, to accept the minutes of the 

Planning Committee held on August 7, 2023. Of those present, the vote was unanimous in favor. 

APPENDIX K 

IN THE MATTER OF MAJOR SUBDIVISION PRELIMINARY PLAT AND MAJOR SITE 

PLAN FOR PARKSIDE SUBDIVISION 

Council Member Buddy Palmer recused himself for this item of business. 

 

Council Member Gaston moved, seconded by Council Member Mims, to approve a major subdivision 

preliminary plat for Parkside subdivision, as well as the major site plan. The vote was, as follows: 

Council Member Mims           AYE 

Council Member Bryan          AYE 

Council Member Beard           AYE 

Council Member Davis           AYE 

Council Member Palmer       RECUSED 

Council Member Gaston       AYE 

Council Member Jones         ABSENT 

- 36 -

Item # 4.



APPENDIX L 

Council Member Palmer rejoined the meeting. 

IN THE MATTER OF RESOLUTION REQUESTING LEE COUNTY TO SEEK ASSISTANCE 

FROM THE TOMBIGBEE RIVER VALLEY WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICT TO 

ADDRESS ISSUES RELATED TO EROSION AT PROPERTY LOCATED AT OR NEAR 735 

EASON BOULEVARD  

Council Member Mims moved, seconded by Council Member Palmer, to approve a 'Resolution 

Requesting Lee County to Seek Assistance from the Tombigbee River Valley Water Management 

District to Address Issues Related to Erosion at Property Located at or Near 735 Eason Boulevard'. Of 

those present, the vote was unanimous in favor. APPENDIX M 

IN THE MATTER OF CVB BOARD MINUTES SEPTEMBER 5, 2023  

Council Member Davis moved, seconded by Council Member Bryan, to approve the minutes of the 

Convention and Visitors Bureau of September 5, 2023. Of those present, the vote was unanimous in 

favor. APPENDIX N 

IN THE MATTER OF AWARD OF BID # 2023-042WL TO REPAIR AND REPAINT THE 

BELDEN WATER TANK  

Bids were received for Bid # 2023-042WL - Repair and Repaint Belden Water Tank, with the lowest 

and best bid being from Dixie Painting and Sandblasting, Inc., in the amount of $332,505.00. Council 

Member Palmer moved, seconded by Council Member Gaston, to award the bid to Dixie Painting and 

Sandblasting, Inc., in the amount of $332,505.00. Of those present, the vote was unanimous in favor. 

APPENDIX O 

IN THE MATTER OF CONTRACT APPROVAL WITH ARCHITECTURE SOUTH TO 

DESIGN DOT COOPER KELLY BUILDING RENOVATIONS  

Council Member Davis moved, seconded by Council Member Bryan, to approve a contract with 

Architecture South to design the Dot Cooper Kelly building renovations. Of those present, the vote was 

unanimous in favor. APPENDIX P 

IN THE MATTER OF TEMPORARY ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 2, ARTICLE II, 

SECTION 2-16 MEETING TIMES AND PLACES  

Council Member Gaston moved, seconded by Council Member Mims, to approve a 'Temporary 

Ordinance Amending Chapter 2, Article II, Section 2-16 Meeting Times and Places'. Due to the 

renovation of the Council chambers, the meeting place of the City Council will be changed to the 

Church Street School auditorium. Of those present, the vote was unanimous in favor. APPENDIX Q 

IN THE MATTER OF DONATION OF STREETS AND ALLEYWAYS IN THE VILLAGES 

COMPLEX (TABLED AT SEPTEMBER 5, 2023 MEETING)  

- 37 -

Item # 4.



Council Member Palmer moved, seconded by Council Member Gaston, to take the item off the table. Of 

those present the vote was unanimous in favor.  

Council member Gaston moved, seconded by Council Member Mims, to approve the acceptance of the 

donation of streets and alleyways in The Villages complex. Of those present, the vote was unanimous in 

favor. APPENDIX R 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

Council Member Davis moved, seconded by Council Member Palmer, to determine the need for an 

executive session. City Attorney Ben Logan said the session will be for the possible acquisition of real 

property under Miss. Code Anno. 25-41-7(g) (1972 as amended). Of those present, the vote was 

unanimous in favor. 

 

Council Member Davis moved, seconded by Council Member Bryan, to close the regular session and 

enter executive session for discussion of possible acquisition of real property under Miss. Code Anno. 

25-41-7(g) (1972 as amended). Of those present, the vote was unanimous in favor at 6:21 PM. 

After discussion in executive session, Council Member Mims moved, seconded by Council Member 

Gaston to return to the regular meeting at 6:55 PM. Of those present, the vote was unanimous in favor. 

ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business to come before the Council at this time, Council Member Mims moved, 

seconded by Council Member Gaston, to adjourn the meeting at 6:56 PM. Of those present, the vote was 

unanimous in favor. 

This the 19th day of September, 2023. 

 

 

       __________________________________________ 

       Travis Beard, Council President 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Missy Shelton, Council Clerk 

 

       APPROVED 

 

 

       __________________________________________ 

       Todd Jordan, Mayor 

 

       __________________________________________ 

       Date 

- 38 -

Item # 4.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Kim Hanna, CFO/City Clerk 

DATE September 25, 2023 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF BILL PAY KH 
  

 

Request:  

For your review. 

 

- 39 -

Item # 5.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Kim Hanna, CFO 

DATE October 3, 2023 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF ADVERTISING AND PROMOTIONAL ITEMS KH 
  

 

Request:  

Proposed items for approval are for the purpose of advertising and bringing into favorable notice 

the opportunities, possibilities and resources of the City of Tupelo.  

 

ITEMS: 

Various vendors    $2,500.00   Haven Acres Festival 

Various vendors $2,500.00   Canal Street Festival 

 

 

- 40 -

Item # 6.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Kim Hanna, CFO 

DATE October 3, 2023 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF MUNICIPAL COMPLIANCE QUESTIONNAIRE KH 
  

 

Request:  

Approval of the municipal compliance questionnaire for fiscal year 2023   

 

ITEMS: 

2023 Municipal Compliance Questionnaire  

 

 

- 41 -

Item # 7.



MUNICIPAL COMPLIANCE QUESTIONNAIRE 

 

 

 

INFORMATION 

 

Note:  Due to the size of some municipalities, some of the question may not be 

applicable.  If so, mark N/A in answer blanks.  Answers to other questions may require 

more than “yes” or “no,” and, as a result, more information on this questionnaire may be 

required and/or separate workpapers may be needed. 

 

 

 

1.  Name and address of municipality: __City of Tupelo              ____________________ 

 

        P.O. Box 1485               Tupelo, MS  38802-1485 

 

2.  List the date and population of the latest official U.S. Census or most recent official 

census: 

                  2010                  37,923 

 

 

3.  Names, addresses and telephone numbers of the officials (include elected officials, 

chief administrative officer, and attorney). 

                         ATTACHED LIST INCLUDED 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4.  Period of time covered by this questionnaire: 

 

     From:  _______10/1/2022___   To:  ________9/30/2023____ 

 

5.  Expiration date of current elected officials’ term:  ________6/30/2025____________ 

- 42 -

Item # 7.



        (CITY OF TUPELO)____ 

(MUNICIPALITY) 

 

Certification to Municipal Compliance Questionnaire 

 

Year Ended September 30, _2023 

 

 

 

 We have reviewed all questions and responses as contained in this Municipal  

 

Compliance Questionnaire for the Municipality of ___TUPELO__________, and, to the  

 

best of our knowledge and belief, all responses are accurate. 

 

 

 

__________________________    ________________________ 

(City Clerk’s Signature)     (Mayor’s Signature) 

 

__________________________    ________________________ 

(Date)        (Date) 

 

 

 

Minute Book References: 

 

 Book Number:  ___________________ 

 

 Page:  _______________________ 

 

(Clerk is to enter minute book references when questionnaire is accepted by board.) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

- 43 -

Item # 7.



MUNICIPAL COMPLIANCE QUESTIONNAIRE 

 

 

 

ANSWER ALL QUESTIONS:  Y – YES, N – NO, N/A – NOT APPLICABLE 

 

 

 

PART I – GENERAL 

 

1.    Have all ordinances been entered into the ordinance book and    

       included in the minutes?  (Section 21-13-13)     __Y__ 

 

2.    Do all municipal vehicles have public license plates and proper 

       markings?  (Sections 25-1-87 and 27-19-27)     __Y__ 

 

3.    Are municipal records open to the public?  (Section 25-61-5)   __Y__ 

 

4.    Are meetings of the board open to the public?  (Section 25-41-5)  __Y__ 

 

5.    Are notices of special or recess meetings posted?  (Section 25-41-13)  __Y__ 

 

6.    Are all required personnel covered by appropriate surety bonds? 

 

• Appointed officers and those handling money, see statutes 

governing the form of government (i.e., Section 21-3-5 for 

Code Charter)        __Y__ 

• Municipal clerk (Section 21-15-38)     __Y__ 

• Deputy clerk (Section 21-15-23)     __Y__ 

• Chief of police (Section 21-21-1)     __Y__ 

• Deputy police (Section 45-5-9) (if hired under this law)  __Y__ 

 

7.    Are minutes of board meetings prepared to properly reflect the actions 

       of the board?  (Section 21-15-17 and 21-15-19)     __Y__ 

 

8.    Are minutes of board meetings signed by the mayor or majority of the  

       board within 22 days of the meeting?  (Section 21-15-33)   __Y__ 

 

9.    Has the municipality complied with the nepotism law in its employment 

       practices?  (Section 25-1-53)       __Y__ 

 

10.  Did all officers, employees of the municipality, or their relative avoid  

       any personal interest in any contracts with the municipality during their 

       term or within one year after their terms of office or employment? 

       (Section 25-4-105)        __Y__ 

 

- 44 -

Item # 7.



MUNICIPAL COMPLIANCE QUESTIONNAIRE 

 

11.  Does the municipality contract with a Certified Public Accountant or an  

       auditor approved by the State Auditor for its annual audit within twelve 

       months of the end of each fiscal year?  (Section 21-35-31)   __Y__ 

 

12.  Has the municipality published a synopsis or notice of the annual 

       audit within 30 days of acceptance?  (Section 21-35-31 or 21-17-19)  __Y__ 

 

 

 

PART II – CASH AND RELATED RECORDS 

 

1.    Where required, is a claims docket maintained?  (Section 21-39-7)  __Y__ 

 

2.    Are all claims paid in the order of their entry in the claims docket? 

       (Section 21-39-9)         __Y__ 

 

3.    Does the claims docket identify the claimant, claim number, amount 

       and fund from which each warrant will be issued?  (Section 21-39-7)  __Y__ 

 

4.    Are all warrants approved by the board, signed by the Mayor or majority 

       of the board, attested to by the clerk, and bearing the municipal seal? 

       (Section 21-39-13)        __Y__ 

 

5.    Are warrants for approved claims held until sufficient cash is available 

       in the fund from which it is drawn?  (Section 21-39-13)    __Y__ 

 

6.    Has the municipality adopted and entered on its minutes a budget in the  

       format prescribed by the Office of the State Auditor?  (Section 21-35-5, 

       21-35-7 and 21-35-9)        __Y__ 

 

7.    Does the municipality operate on a cash basis budget, except for  

       expenditures paid within 30 days of fiscal year end or for construction 

       in progress?  (Section 21-35-23)       __Y__ 

 

8.    Has the municipality held a public hearing and published its adopted 

       budget?  (Section 21-35-5)       __Y__ 

 

9.    Has the municipality complied with legal publication requirements 

       when budgetary changes of 10% or more are made to a department’s 

       budget?  (Section 21-35-25)       __Y__ 

 

10.  If revenues are less than estimated and a deficit is anticipated, did the 

       board revise the budget by its regular July meeting?  (Section 21-35-25) __Y__ 

 

- 45 -

Item # 7.



MUNICIPAL COMPLIANCE QUESTIONNAIRE 

 

 

 

11.  Have financial records been maintained in accordance with the chart 

       of accounts prescribed by the State Auditor?  (Section 21-35-11)  __Y__ 

 

12.  Does the municipal clerk submit to the board a monthly report of 

       expenditures against each budget item for the preceding month and 

       fiscal year to date and the unexpended balances of each budget item? 

       (Section 21-35-13)        __Y__ 

 

13.  Does the board avoid approving claims and the city clerk not issue any 

       warrants which would be in excess of budgeted amounts, except for  

       court-ordered or emergency expenditures?  (Section 21-35-17)   __Y__ 

 

14.  Has the municipality commissioned municipal depositories? 

       (Section 27-105-353 and 27-105-363)      __Y__ 

 

15.  Have investments of funds been restricted to those instruments 

       authorized by law?  (Section 21-33-323)      __Y__ 

 

16.  Are donations restricted to those specifically authorized by law? 

       [Section 21-17-5 (Section 66, Miss. Constitution) – Section 21-19-45  

       through 21-19-59, etc.]        __Y__ 

 

17.  Are fixed assets property tagged and accounted for?   

       (Section 7-7-211 – Municipal Audit and Accounting Guide)   __Y__ 

 

18.  Is all travel authorized in advance and reimbursements made in 

       accordance with Section 25-3-41?      __Y__ 

 

19.  Are all travel advances made in accordance with State Auditor’s  

       regulations?  (Section 25-3-41)       __Y__ 

 

 

 

PART III – PURCHASING AND RECEIVING 

 

1.    Are bids solicited for purchases, when required by law (written bids and 

       advertising)?  [Section 31-7-13(b) and (c)]     __Y__ 

 

2.    Are all lowest and best bid decisions properly documented? 

       [Section 31-7-13(d)]        __Y__ 

 

 

- 46 -

Item # 7.



MUNICIPAL COMPLIANCE QUESTIONNAIRE 

 

 

 

3.    Are all one-source item and emergency purchases documented on the 

       board’s minutes?  [Section 31-7-13(m) and(k)]     __Y__ 

 

4.    Do all officers and employees understand and refrain from accepting 

       gifts or kickbacks from suppliers?  (Section 31-7-23)    __Y__ 

 

 

 

PART IV – BONDS AND OTHER DEBT 

 

1.    Has the municipality complied with the percentage of taxable property  

       limitation on bonds and other debt issued during the year? 

       (Section 21-33-303)        __Y__ 

 

2.    Has the municipality levied and collected taxes, in sufficient amount 

       for the retirement of general obligation debt principal and interest? 

       (Section 21-33-87)        __Y__ 

 

3.    Have the required trust funds been established for utility revenue 

       bonds?  (Section 21-27-65)       __Y__ 

 

4.    Have expenditures of bond proceeds been strictly limited to the 

       purpose for which the bonds were issued?  (Section 21-33-317)  __Y__ 

 

5.    Has the municipality refrained from borrowing, except where it 

       had specific authority?  (Section 21-17-5)     __Y__ 

 

 

 

PART V – TAXES AND OTHER RECEIPTS 

 

1.    Has the municipality adopted the county ad valorem tax rolls? 

       (Section 27-35-167)        __Y__ 

 

2.    Are interest and penalties being collected on delinquent ad valorem  

       taxes?  (Section 21-33-53)       __Y__ 

 

3.    Has the municipality conducted an annual land sale for delinquent ad 

       valorem taxes?  (Section 21-33-63)      __Y__ 

 

4.    Have the various ad valorem tax collections been deposited into the  

       appropriate funds?  (Separate Funds for Each Tax Levy) (Section 21-33-53) __Y__ 

- 47 -

Item # 7.



MUNICIPAL COMPLIANCE QUESTIONNAIRE 

 

 

 

5.    Has the increase in ad valorem taxes, if any, been limited to amounts 

       allowed by law?  (Section 27-39-320 and 27-39-321)    __Y__ 

 

6.    Are local privilege taxes collected from all businesses located within 

       the municipality, except those exempted?  (Section 27-17-5)   __Y__ 

 

7.    Are transient vendor taxes collected from all transient vendors within 

       the municipality, except those exempted?  (Section 75-85-1)   __Y__ 

 

8.    Is money received from the state’s “Municipal Fire Protection Fund” 

       spent only to improve municipal fire departments?  (Section 83-1-37)  __Y__ 

 

9.    Has the municipality levied or appropriated not less than ¼ mill for 

       fire protection and certified to the county it provides its own fire 

       protection or allowed the county to levy such tax? 

       (Section 83-1-37 and 83-1-39)       __Y__ 

 

10.  Are state-imposed court assessments collected and settled monthly? 

       (Section 99-19-73)        __Y__ 

 

11.  Are all fines and forfeitures collected when due and settled 

       immediately to the municipal treasury?  (Section 21-15-21)   __Y__ 

 

12.  Are bids solicited by advertisement or, under special circumstances,  

       three appraisals obtained when real property is sold?  

       (Section 21-17-1)         __Y__ 

 

13.  Has the municipality determined the full and complete cost for solid 

       waste for the previous fiscal year? (Section 17-7-347) 

 

14.  Has the municipality published an itemized report of all revenues, costs and  

       expenses incurred by the municipality during the immediately preceding  

       fiscal year in operating the garbage or rubbish collection or disposal system? 

       (Section 17-17-348)        __Y_ 

 

15.  Has the municipality conducted an annual inventory of its assets in 

       accordance with guidelines established by the Office of the State 

       Auditor? (MMAAG)        __Y__ 

 

 

 

- 48 -

Item # 7.



MUNICIPAL COMPLIANCE QUESTIONNAIRE ATTACHMENT 

INFORMATION ITEM #3 

 

 

Names, addresses and telephone numbers of officials. 

 

  

 Mayor      Ward V 

 Todd Jordan     Buddy Palmer 

 6231 Park Heights Circle   273 Tyler Willis Lane 

 Tupelo, MS 38801         Tupelo, MS  38804 

(662) 841-6513    (662) 255-1454 
 E-mail todd.jordan@tupeloms.gov   E-mail buddy.palmer@tupeloms.gov 

            

          

 Ward I      Ward VI 

 Chad Mims           Janet Gaston 

 1304 Lakeshire Dr          1764 Columbine Dr 

 Tupelo, MS 38804    Tupelo, MS  38801 

 (662) 322-7329    (662) 255-9530 
 E-mail chad.mims@tupeloms.gov   E-mail janet.gaston@tupeloms.gov  
        

 

 Ward II     Ward VII 

 Lynn Bryan     Rosie Jones 

 1226 Clayton Ave.    1119 Evelyn Dr 

 Tupelo, MS  38804    Tupelo, MS 38801  

 (662) 321-2081    (662) 401-5483  
E-mail lynn.bryan@tupeloms.gov   E-mail rosie.jones@tupeloms.gov 

 

 Ward III      

 Travis Beard          

 2415 William Drive 

 Tupelo, MS 38801     

 (662) 610-0550    

 E-mail travis.beard@tupeloms.gov  

 

 Ward IV  

 Nettie Y. Davis     

 326 Barnes Street      

 Tupelo, MS 38804     

 (662) 871-8394    
 E-mail nettie.davis@tupeloms.gov     

- 49 -

Item # 7.

mailto:todd.jordan@tupeloms.gov
mailto:chad.mims@tupeloms.gov
mailto:lynn.bryan@tupeloms.gov


 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Todd Jordan, Mayor 

DATE September 25, 2023 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF APPOINTMENT MONTGOMERY BERRY TO POLICE 

ADVISORY BOARD – WARD 1 TJ 
  

 

Request:  

For your confirmation………… 

Appointment of Dr. Montgomery Berry to Police Advisory Board to represent Ward 1. 

 

- 50 -

Item # 8.



J. MONTGOMERY BERRY, MD 
Dr. J. Montgomery Berry is board certified in Otolaryngology-Head and Neck 
Surgery and Otolaryngology Allergy. He began his practice in Northeast 
Mississippi upon joining ENT Physicians of North Mississippi in 1998. He 
specializes in the treatment of adult and pediatric patients with ear, nose, and 
throat disorders and allergy problems, with a special interest in laryngeal and 
voice disorders. 

Dr. Berry is a graduate of Millsaps College where he received a BS in 
chemistry and was a four-year letterman and captain of the basketball team. 
He obtained his medical degree from the University of Mississippi School of 
Medicine where he was awarded the Mississippi-Louisiana Award for 
Excellence in Undergraduate Otolaryngology. He also served as National 
Student Trustee for the Christian Medical Dental Society. Dr. Berry completed 
his residency at Vanderbilt University where he was winner of the resident 
research competition for his work in laryngeal re-animation. He is a charter 
member of the Christian Society of Otolaryngology and is a fellow of the 
American College of Surgeons. 

He is married to Sara Williams Berry of Corinth and they have seven children. 
He is a founding member of The Orchard Church in Tupelo where he 
continues to serve as an elder on the Jeremiah Council. He is an avid 
sportsman and spends most of his free time with his family. 

 

- 51 -

Item # 8.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Todd Jordan, Mayor 

DATE September 28, 2023 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF APPOINTMENT OF STEVEN COON TO POLICE 

ADVISORY BOARD – WARD 5 TJ 
  

 

Request:  

For your confirmation………… 

Appointment of Steven Coon to Police Advisory Board to represent Ward 5. 

 

- 52 -

Item # 9.



 

 

     

 STEVEN J. COON  
DESIGN ENGINEER MANAGER 

 
 

 PROFILE 
 

As a passionate, open-minded, & dedicated individual, I bring a certain level of 
professionalism to any task.  Having served in several management roles, I am 
accustomed to making difficult decisions and communicating with team 
members.  The role of R&D Design Engineer allows for out of the box solutions 
to a multitude of scenarios.  I strive to consider all points of view of the team in 
order to achieve the goal. 

SKILLS 
 

◦ COMMUNICATION 

◦ CRITICAL THINKING 

◦ COLLABORATION 

◦ CREATIVITY 

◦ LEADERSHIP 

◦ DECISION MAKING 

EXPERIENCE 
 

Tiffin Motorhomes, Red Bay, AL 
2003 - Present 

Currently as Design Engineer Manager, I oversee a team of people in the design 
of the superstructure for Class A motorhomes as well as new floorplans.  I will 
often travel to various dealer/customer trade shows in order to gain knowledge 
of prospective buyers.  This allows us to remain competitive in the market.  I 
have also served as a R&D Design Engineer Manager of a team of designers.  I 
currently have my name on one U.S. Patent for an egress door design.  These 
roles have also required me to work hand in hand with various outside vendors 
to develop new products in order to achieve necessary goals.    

 
HMC Technologies, New Albany, MS 
2000 - 2003 

I worked directly under Mechanical Engineers to produce drawings prior to 
manufacturing.  This would require handling request for quotes from outside 
vendors and working with purchasing to obtain needed materials.  I was also 
task with maintaining the Engineering Library and compile information to 
provide to customers for the various projects. 

 
Reed Manufacturing, Tupelo, MS 
1995 - 2000 

As a laborer in the Cutting department, I served as a 120+% operator in multiple 
jobs.  I often served as a floater to fill in various positions and train new 
employees as needed. 

EDUCATION 
 

Itawamba Community 

College 
1997-2001 

A.A.S. Drafting & Design Technology 

 
Software Proficiency 
Certified Solidworks Associate 

Level I & II Training AutoDesk Inventor 

AutoCAD, Excel, Word, Outlook, SAP 

- 53 -

Item # 9.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Tanner Newman, Director of Development Servicers 

DATE October 3, 2023 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CITY CLERK TO 

EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT ON BEHALF OF THE CITY OF TUPELO 

BETWEEN THE MISSISSIPPI DEPARTMENT OF ARCHIVES AND 

HISTORY AND BELINDA STEWART ARCHITECTS, PA RELATING TO A 

HISTORIC STRUCTURES REPORT AND ENGINEERING REPORT FOR 

SPRINGHILL MISSIONARY BAPTIST CHURCH TN 
  

 

Request:  

Authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the attached Agreement on behalf of the City of 

Tupelo between the Mississippi Department of Archives and History and Belinda Stewart 

Architects, PA relating to a historic structures report and engineering report for Springhill 

Missionary Baptist Church. 

 

- 54 -

Item # 10.



- 55 -

Item # 10.



- 56 -

Item # 10.



- 57 -

Item # 10.



- 58 -

Item # 10.



- 59 -

Item # 10.



- 60 -

Item # 10.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Tanner Newman, Director of Development Services 

DATE October 3, 2023 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF REVIEW/APPROVE PROPERTIES FOR LOT 

MOWING TN 
  

 

Request:  

Pursuant to Miss. Code Ann. 1972, § 21-19-11, review and approve final lot mowing list. 

- 61 -

Item # 11.



Preliminary Lot Mowing Report for October 3, 2023 
 

 Violation Ref Parcel Location Owner Owner Address Owner City State Zip Inspector 

1.  45037 089N3106500 108-176 S 
GLOSTER ST 

BUCY JAMES 
EARL JR & ANITA 
BUCY LONG 

1651 BIRMINGHAM RIDGE RD SALTILLO, MS 38866 SB 

2.   45043 077H2514701 109 
BRIARWOOD 
CIR 

GOOCH JASON 111 BRIARWOOD TUPELO, MS 38804 TP 

3.   45048 088Q3404300 143 S 
FEEMSTER LAKE 
RD 

TARPLEY 
RICHARD M JR 

143 S FEEMSTER LAKE RD TUPELO, MS 38804 RS 

4.   45052 088Q3401600 1911 MARTIN 
HILL DR 

PETTIGREW 
PROPERTIES LLC 

281 MCNEECE ST TUPELO, MS 38804 RS 

5.   45058 101G0110400 1203 
MOCKINGBIRD 
LN 

PITTS HOYET L & 
HELEN R 

P O BOX 3098 TUPELO, MS 38803 SB 

6.   45064 106A1400700 2838 EVANS CIR BUGGS DARRIN L 103 ROAD 9 HOULKA, MS 38850 RS 

7.   45065 106A1402800 2861 EVANS CIR HOOKS HENRY E 2861 EVANS CIRCLE TUPELO, MS 38801 RS 

8.   45067 105D1502100 2876 BEASLEY 
DR 

RAY EARNESTINE 
B (LE) 

168 REED CIRCLE MEDINA, TN 38355 RS 

9.   45068 105D1502300 2906 BEASLEY 
DR 

LUTHER 
PROPERTIES LLC 

2180 VETERANS HWY EAST PONTOTOC, MS 38863 RS 

10.   45070 105D1505400 3037 BEASLEY 
DR 

TUCKER JAMES L 
& ELNOIS R (LE) 

271 COUNTY ROAD 1467 PLANTERSVILLE, MS 38862 RS 

11.   45071 105D1505000 3075 MOORE 
AVE 

MOORE TONY A 
SR & BERNICE 

109  BELWOOD COVE BELDEN, MS 38826 RS 

12.   45073 105H1507200 3438 BROOKS 
ST 

ALIM 
CHRISTOPHER 
CONWILL 

3135 CAROLINA ROAD NETTLETON, MS 38858 RS 

- 62 -

Item # 11.



Preliminary Lot Mowing Report for October 3, 2023 
 

 Violation Ref Parcel Location Owner Owner Address Owner City State Zip Inspector 

13.  45075 101H0111700 1007 COOLIDGE HARDY JAMES L 
& DAPHNE A 

1007 COOLIDGE TUPELO, MS 38801 SB 

14.   45077 101H0121900 1700 FILLMORE 
DR 

MAULDIN BOBBY 
& JOHN ASHLEY 

1700 FILMORE TUPELO, MS 38801 SB 

15.   45080 101B0213000 418 LAKEVIEW 
DR 

TTLBL LLC 4747 EXECUTIVE DR STE 510 SAN DIEGO, CA 92121 TP 

16.   45081 077P3510300 208 NANNEY 
DR 

MEMPHIS 
WEALTH 
BUILDERS LLC 

P O BOX 558 NESBIT, MS 38651 TP 

17.   45088 077F2617900 709 LAR-ELI-DO 
DR 

PAYNE THOMAS 
JR 

113 WAYSIDE TUPELO, MS 38804 TP 

18.   45090 077F2618700 706 LAR-ELI-DO 
DR 

BURT BEN J & 
CAROL A 

706 LAR ELI DO TUPELO, MS 38801 TP 

19.   45091 105D1503500 3064 MOORE 
AVE 

RICHARDSON 
MEGAN 

P O BOX 87 RED BANKS, MS 38661 RS 

20.   45092 077P3520900 2313 RASBERRY 
ST 

FELLS TUMAHA 2313 RASBERRY ST TUPELO, MS 38801 TP 

21.   45097 089J3112000 638 ALLEN ST STEVEN ANDREW 
FAIRLEY 

638 ALLEN ST TUPELO, MS 38804 DS 

22.   45098 089J3101700 507 MAGNOLIA 
DR 

JUSTICE C ALLEN 
& LEAH 

164 RD 461 SALTILLO, MS 38866 DS 

23.   45101 077Q3604200 1606 ECKFORD 
ST 

COMPLEO LLC P O BOX 691 TUPELO, MS 38802 SB 

24.   45102 112F0401300 1553 S 
FEEMSTER LAKE 
RD 

THOMPSON 
KELLY WAYNE & 
MARY E 

1553 FEEMSTER LAKE ROAD TUPELO, MS 38804 RS 

- 63 -

Item # 11.



Preliminary Lot Mowing Report for October 3, 2023 
 

 Violation Ref Parcel Location Owner Owner Address Owner City State Zip Inspector 

25.  45105 077Q3604300 200 BOWEN ST NORTH 
MISSISSIPPI REAL 
ESTATE & LAND 
LLC 

103 BIENVILLE CIR TUPELO, MS 38801 SB 

26.   45107 077Q3604400 208 BOWEN ST WILSON BOBBY L 604 RACOVE DR TUPELO, MS 38801 SB 

27.   45108 077Q3602500 205 BOWEN ST HARRIS JAMES H 
& MARY N 

205 BOWEN TUPELO, MS 38801 SB 

28.   45112 077D2514000 1202 JOYNER 
AVE 

JAN & TERRY LLC 1211 FLETCHER ST TUPELO, MS 38804 TP 

29.   45114 075R2207600 3794 FAIR OAKS 
DR 

WHITENTON & 
WHITENTON 

P O BOX 2201 TUPELO, MS 38803 TP 

30.   45117 077P3502700 215 
MONUMENT 
DR 

GRAB THE MAP 
LLC 

3195 MCCULLOUGH BLVD BELDEN, MS 38826 DS 

31.   45118 077P3505400 2105 GLENDALE 
ST 

FUTURE HOPE 
RENTALS LLC 

777 CR 251 SALTILLO, MS 38866 DS 

32.   45122 075R2207800 3784 FAIR OAKS 
DR 

BURCHAM HELEN 
M 

3784 FAIR OAKS BELDEN, MS 38826 TP 

33.   45125 101D0120300 1304 VAN 
BUREN AVE 

PRESLEY 
ELIZABETH 

1304 VAN BUREN TUPELO, MS 38801 TP 

34.   45126 088N3302200 206 CANAL ST PRATT JENNIFER 1165 HWY 47 HOUSTON, MS 38851 RS 

35.   45127 112A0408400 515 LAKE ST BISHOP 
CHARLINE 

103 HIGH FOREST LANE TUPELO, MS 38801 RS 

36.   45129 112A0408200 525 LAKE ST BERRY DIERDRE 525 LAKE ST TUPELO, MS 38804 RS 

- 64 -

Item # 11.



Preliminary Lot Mowing Report for October 3, 2023 
 

 Violation Ref Parcel Location Owner Owner Address Owner City State Zip Inspector 

37.  45133 112A0406800 904 MARTIN ST PETTIGREW 
MICHAEL C & 
JENIFER C 

281 MCNEECE STREET TUPELO, MS 38804 RS 

38.   45135 077Q3626200 301 HANCOCK 
ST 

KEITH 
INVESTMENTS 
LLC 

P O BOX 870 VERONA, MS 38879 SB 

39.   45140 075G1501700 MCCULLOUGH 
BLVD 

SALTILLO 45 LLC 210 E MAIN ST TUPELO, MS 38804 TP 

40.   45142 101B0221900 2306 
ENGLEWOOD 
DR 

GARMON 
DANIELLE S 

2306 ENGLEWOOD DR TUPELO, MS 38801 RS 

41.   45143 07602301100 2139-2143 
MCCULLOUGH 
BLVD 

DANIELS BILLY & 
JEAN 

P O BOX 159 BELDEN, MS 38826 TP 

42.   45164 083U0709900 SOUTHERN DR MILL CREEK LLC P O BOX 3088 TUPELO, MS 38803 TP 

43.          

44.          

45.          

46.          

47.          

48.          

 

- 65 -

Item # 11.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Tanner Newman, Director of Development Services 

DATE October 3, 2023 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF REVIEW/APPROVE PROPERTIES FOR DEMOLITION 

TN 
  

 

Request:  

The Department of Development Services requests Council approval to demolish substandard 

structures on the following properties: 

 

1505 Hillsdale Drive (PARCEL #088T-27-003-00) 

1518 Central Avenue (PARCEL #077Q-36-156-00) 

135 Warren Lane (PARCEL #079V-32-012-00) 

 

 

- 66 -

Item # 12.



- 67 -

Item # 12.



- 68 -

Item # 12.



- 69 -

Item # 12.



- 70 -

Item # 12.



- 71 -

Item # 12.



- 72 -

Item # 12.



- 73 -

Item # 12.



- 74 -

Item # 12.



- 75 -

Item # 12.



- 76 -

Item # 12.



- 77 -

Item # 12.



- 78 -

Item # 12.



- 79 -

Item # 12.



- 80 -

Item # 12.



- 81 -

Item # 12.



- 82 -

Item # 12.



- 83 -

Item # 12.



- 84 -

Item # 12.



- 85 -

Item # 12.



- 86 -

Item # 12.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Tanner Newman, Director of Development Services 

DATE October 3, 2023 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF REVIEW/APPROVE LIEN RESOLUTIONS FOR 

UNPAID LOT MOWING INVOICES  TN 
  

 

Request:  

Please review and approve the attached Resolution Adjudicating Cost and Assessing Lien 

Against Real Property under MISS.CODE ANN. §21-19-11 (1972) AS AMENDED for the 

following property: 

 

Address:                              Parcel # 

335 Canal St.                       088N-33-047-00 

151 Canal St.                       088N-33-057-00 

431 Tolbert St.                    089F-30-033-00 

1261 N. Green Street          089B-30-039-00 

1197 S. Gloster Street        101M-12-175-00 

1103 Chickasaw Trail         113J-07-022-00 

2411 Danny St.                    077P-35-006-00 

 

- 87 -

Item # 13.



- 88 -

Item # 13.



- 89 -

Item # 13.



- 90 -

Item # 13.



- 91 -

Item # 13.



- 92 -

Item # 13.



- 93 -

Item # 13.



- 94 -

Item # 13.



- 95 -

Item # 13.



- 96 -

Item # 13.



- 97 -

Item # 13.



- 98 -

Item # 13.



- 99 -

Item # 13.



- 100 -

Item # 13.



- 101 -

Item # 13.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Tanner Newman, Director of Development Services 

DATE October 3, 2023 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF REVIEW/APPROVE LIEN RESOLUTION FOR 

UNPAID DEMOLTION COSTS OF 1100 CHAPMAN DRIVE  TN 
  

 

Request:  

Please review and approve the attached Resolution Adjudicating Cost and Assessing Lien 

Against Real Property under MISS.CODE ANN. §21-19-11 (1972) AS AMENDED for the 

following property: 

 

 

Address Parcel # 

    1100 Chapman Dr.      077M-36-057-01 

 

 

- 102 -

Item # 14.



BEFORE THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF  

THE CITY OF TUPELO, MISSISSIPPI 

 

 

CITY OF TUPELO, MISSISSIPPI                        LIENOR 

 

VS.               CASE:  12530 

                         

STEPHANIE DAVIDSON                OWNER 

  

      

RESOLUTION ADJUDICATING COST AND ASSESSING LIEN AGAINST REAL PROPERTY UNDER 

MISS. CODE ANN. 21-19-11 (1972) AS AMENDED 

 

1.  Pursuant to Miss. Code Ann. §21-19-11 (1972), as amended, the City of Tupelo gave notice of a 

public hearing before the governing authorities of the City of Tupelo to STEPHANIE DAVIDSON (Owner of the 

property described herein below) to determine whether the real property described herein below was in such a state of 

uncleanliness as to be a menace to the public health, safety and welfare of the community.  

 

Property Owner:  STEPHANIE DAVIDSON 

 

Address of Owner: 1100 CHAPMAN DRIVE 

 TUPELO, MS  38804   

 

Parcel Number:  077M-36-057-01 

 

Address of Violation:    1100 CHAPMAN 

 

 2.  The hearing was held before the Mayor and City Council of the City of Tupelo on July 7, 2015 

following which the property referenced above was found to be a menace to the public health and safety, and the 

property was ordered to be cleaned immediately.  Subsequent to this date, and in accordance with Miss. Code Ann. 

§21-19-11 (1972), as amended, the City of Tupelo proceeded to have the structure(s) demolished.    

 

 3. Pursuant to Miss. Code Ann. §21-19-11 (1972, as amended), City of Tupelo shall charge Owner 

with the actual cost of demolition, including administrative and legal costs of the municipality, and may also impose 

a penalty of one-half of the actual cost or $1500.00, whichever is more.   

 

 4. The City of Tupelo, by and through its council, at a regularly scheduled meeting held on 10/03/2023, 

adjudicated the actual cost of demolition to be $2,522.73.  This amount is assessed as a lien on the real property 

described above. 

 

5. This Resolution will be enrolled as a judgment lien on the Lee County, Mississippi judgment roll in 

the office of the Circuit Clerk of Lee County, Mississippi.  If unpaid prior to the 30th day of September of the current 

year, this lien shall be satisfied by having the amount of this lien included with municipal ad valorem taxes and 

payment shall be enforced in the same manner in which payment is enforced for municipal ad valorem taxes. Failure 

to pay this assessment shall require the tax collector to sell the land as now provided by law for the sale of lands for 

delinquent municipal taxes. Liens filed after September 30th of the current year, and unpaid by September 30th of the 

subsequent year shall be collected as a part of the subsequent year’s municipal ad valorem taxes, in the same manner 

as provided herein. The lien against the property shall be an encumbrance upon the property and shall follow title of 

the property 

 

6. Prior to its collection as a judgment lien, this assessment may otherwise be collected as a civil debt, 

and the City of Tupelo may institute a suit on open account against the owner of the property in a court of competent 

jurisdiction in the manner provided by law for the cost and any penalty, plus court costs, reasonable attorney's fees 

and interest from the date that the property was cleaned. Pursuant to Miss. Code Ann. § 27-41-9 (1972, as amended), 

an interest charge of one-half of one percent (1/2 of 1%) will accrue monthly on all unpaid liens. 

- 103 -

Item # 14.



 

7. The Director of Development Services is hereby directed to cause a copy of this Resolution to be 

mailed to the owner advising of the assessment of a lien against the property, and the Owner’s right to appeal under 

Miss. Code Ann §11-51-75 (1972, as amended). 

 

WHEREUPON, the foregoing Resolution was declared passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the City 

Council of Tupelo, Mississippi, on this, the 3rd day of October, 2023.  

 

 

               CITY OF TUPELO, MISSISSIPPI 

 

 

      BY: ________________________________ 

             TRAVIS BEARD, Council President  

ATTEST: 

 

 

_______________________________ 

MISSY SHELTON, Clerk of the Council   

APPROVED: 

 

 

     ____________________________________ 

     TODD JORDAN., Mayor 

      

____________________________________ 

     Date 

- 104 -

Item # 14.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Dennis Bonds, City Engineer 

DATE September 27, 2023  

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF MAJOR THOROUGHFARE COMMITTEE 

MEETING MINUTES July 10, 2023 DRB 
  

 

Request: DRB 

See attached minutes from the July 10, 2023 Major Thoroughfare Meeting 

 

- 105 -

Item # 15.



- 106 -

Item # 15.



- 107 -

Item # 15.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Dennis Bonds, City Engineer 

DATE September 27, 2023  

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF MAJOR THOROUGHFARE COMMITTEE 

MEETING MINUTES August 14, 2023 DRB 
  

 

Request: DRB 

See attached minutes from the August 14, 2023 Major Thoroughfare Meeting 

 

- 108 -

Item # 16.



- 109 -

Item # 16.



- 110 -

Item # 16.



- 111 -

Item # 16.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: John Quaka, Chief 

DATE September 28, 2023 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF REJECTING REVERSE BID #2023-045PD JQ 
  

 

Request:  

 Please accept this letter of request to reject Bid #2023-045PD. There were 2 unpriced 

submissions for the Robot. Neither submission met the required specifications. Due to the 

unpriced submissions, the Reverse Bid Process will need to be resubmitted in order to solicit 

additional vendors to participate.   

 

- 112 -

Item # 17.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: John Quaka, Chief of Police 

DATE September 29, 2023 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF UNITED STATES MARSHALS 

SERVICE MS TASK FORCE ADDENDUM ORDER JQ 
  

 

Request:  

REQUEST APPROVAL OF USMS TASK FORCE ADDENDUM ORDER 

 

- 113 -

Item # 18.



ORDER 

 

AN ORDER TO APPROVE AN ADDENDUM 

 TO THE EXISTING FUGITIVE TASK FORCE MEMORANDUM OF 

UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN THE TUPELO POLICE DEPARTMENT AND THE 

UNITED STATES MARSHALS SERVICE CONCERNING THE USE OF BODY-WORN 

CAMERAS BY TASK FORCE OFFICERS AND TO AUTHORIZE THE CHIEF OF 

POLICE TO EXECUTE SAID ADDENDUM 

WHEREAS, on February 15, 2022, the governing authorities of the City of Tupelo 

approved a Memorandum of Understanding between the Tupelo Police Department and the 

United States Marshals Service concerning the appointment of certain Tupelo Police Officers to 

act as members of the Marshals Service’s Fugitive Task Force (“Agreement”); and  

WHEREAS, in accordance with this Agreement, the Tupelo Police Department has 

appointed certain officers to serve as members of the Fugitive Task Force, and it is the desire of 

the City of Tupelo that these officers wear body cameras while performing duties on behalf of 

the U. S. Marshals Service; and  

WHEREAS, in order that these task force officers be allowed to wear body worn 

cameras, the U. S. Marshals Service has required that an addendum be included with the 

Agreement that outlines the rights, duties and procedures incumbent upon each party to the 

Agreement (“Addendum”); and  

WHEREAS, it is in the benefit of the public health, safety and welfare that such task 

force members be equipped with body warn cameras while performing duties in accordance with 

the Agreement and that such Addendum be approved; and  

WHEREAS, the terms of the Addendum and corresponding Agreement consider matters 

of law enforcement investigative reports and records as defined by Miss. Code Ann. § 65-61-3 

(f) and are therefore exempt from the provisions of the Mississippi Public Records Act of 1983.  

NOW, THEREFORE, it is hereby ordered by the Governing Authorities of the City of 

Tupelo, the following:  

1. The prefatory findings of this Order are hereby accepted, incorporated herein and 

found to be in accordance with the necessary and warranted exercise of the 

authority of the City of Tupelo.  

2. The Addendum to Fugitive Task Force Memorandum of Understanding RE: 

Body-Worn Camera Use by Task Force Officers is hereby approved and 

incorporated fully herein, and shall be included as part of the existing 

Memorandum of Understanding between the United States Marshals Service and 

the Tupelo Police Department.  

3. The Chief of Police is hereby authorized to execute the Addendum on behalf of 

the City of Tupelo and the Tupelo Police Department.  

4. The fully executed Addendum and corresponding Memorandum of Understanding 

shall be kept on file in the Office of the Chief of Police.  

 

- 114 -

Item # 18.



The foregoing order was proposed in a motion by Councilmember 

______________________, seconded by Councilmember _________________________, and 

was brought to a vote as follows: 

Councilmember Mims voted   _______________ 

Councilmember Bryan voted   _______________ 

Councilmember Beard voted   _______________ 

Councilmember Davis voted   _______________ 

Councilmember Palmer voted  _______________ 

Councilmember Gaston voted  _______________ 

Councilmember Jones voted   _______________ 

 

Whereupon, the Order having received a majority of affirmative votes, the President of 

the Council declared that the Order had passed and adopted on this the _________ day of 

_____________________, 2023.       

CITY OF TUPELO, MISSISSIPPI 

 

 

      ____________________________________ 

      TRAVIS BEARD, City Council President 

ATTEST: 

 

 

________________________________ 

MISSY SHELTON, Clerk of the Council 

 

 

      

APPROVED: 

 

 

                ____________________________________ 

     TODD JORDAN, Mayor 

 

____________________________________ 

     DATE 
 

 

- 115 -

Item # 18.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Chuck Williams, Director – Public Works 

DATE September 25, 2023 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL PROPOSED CHANGE ORDER 1 FOR 

VAN BUREN DRAINAGE IMPROVMENTS ARPA 2023-032PW - CW 
  

 

Request:  

Request to approve proposed Change Order 1 for Van Buren Drainage Improvements – Bid No. 

2023-032PW. 

 

Per the attached change order, we will be required to add some new pipe sizes/pay items and 

increase/decrease contract quantities of existing pay items to facilitate the necessary changes. 

The change order only revises the contract pay items and quantities. There is no proposed 

increase in price and or project time. 

 

A minor adjustment is needed to the layout of the proposed 48-inch equivalent arch pipe and to 

utilize smaller pipe at the inlet locations with lower elevation to achieve the overall goals and 

objectives of the project. 

 

 

 

- 116 -

Item # 19.



 
 
 

 
 

 

@dabbscorp   
 OFFICE 662.840.4162 1005 N. Eason Boulevard 

  MOBILE 601.927.4012 Tupelo, MS 38804 

 

 

September 19, 2023 
 
 

Mr. Chuck Williams 
Director, Public Works Dept. 
604 Crossover Road 
Tupelo, Mississippi 38801 
 
 
REFERENCE:  RECOMMENDATION OF CHANGE ORDER NO. 1  
   VAN BUREN AVE. DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENTS 
   BID NO. 2023-032PW 
      
Dear Mr. Williams: 
 
Please find attached Change Order No. 1 to the construction contract for the referenced project.  The proposed change order 
has been signed by the Contractor, Townes Construction Co., along with my signature of recommendation of the proposed 
changes.  The contract price will not change as any increases are offset with corresponding decreases in quantities/prices. 
 
The change order is necessary to improve the overall efficiency of the project and the constructability of the proposed inlets.  
The existing drainage pipes at the curb inlets along Van Buren are lower in elevation that the downstream outfall at the ditch.  
Our survey indicated this and our project drawings made changes to these elevations to correct the negative slope conditions, 
which will greatly improve the efficiency of the drainage system in this area.  However, upon receiving the material submittals 
from the contractor for the proposed new inlets, there was not enough elevation to correct the negative slope and still meet 
the required top elevations at the curb and gutter.  This is mainly a result of the size of the pipes (48-inch equivalent arch pipe) 
that are required to convey the storm water.  Thus, we have had to make a minor adjustment to the layout of the proposed 48-
inch equivalent arch pipe and utilize smaller pipe at these inlet locations to achieve the overall goals and objectives of the 
project.  The scope of the work has not changed, and the contractor will not be required to do any types of work that were not 
already part of the project.  Per the attached change order, we will be required to add some new pipe sizes/pay items and 
increase/decrease contract quantities of existing pay items to facilitate the necessary changes.   
 
The change order only revises the contract pay items and quantities.  There is no proposed increase in price and or project time.  
We will need the approval of the change order by the City, including the City Council, to proceed with this work.  We appreciate 
the opportunity to be of service to you and to be involved with this project.   Please let us know should have any questions or 
require additional information. 
 
Sincerely,  
DABBS CORPORATION       

      

Dustin D. Dabbs, PE       
President         

 
C: Mr. Don Lewis, COO, City of Tupelo 
 Ms. Kim Hanna, CFO, City of Tupelo 
 Mr. Ben Logan, City Attorney, City of Tupelo 
 Mr. Dennis Bonds, PE, City Engineer 

- 117 -

Item # 19.



DATE: 9/18/23

CONTRACT FOR:

PROJECT NO.:

OWNER:

CONTRACTOR:

ITEM UNIT
ORIG. UNIT           

PRICE
ORIG.                
QNTY.

C.O. UNIT           
PRICE

C.O.                 
QNTY.

12 LF $15.00 602 $15.00 538 $8,070.00

21 LF $244.00 612 $244.00 370 $90,280.00

22 LF $2,500.00 1 $2,500.00 0 $0.00

24 EA $8,250.00 5 $5,930.00 5 $29,650.00

33 LS $3,500.00 1 $3,500.00 0 $0.00

34 LF $0.00 0 $126.00 470 $59,220.00

35 EA $0.00 0 $5,444.00 2 $10,888.00

34 CY $0.00 0 $250.00 30 $7,500.00

$205,608.00

Dollars  $                   -   

Dollars  $    373,513.00 

0 Days.

Accepted
(Owner) (Owner)

Recommended

Accepted
(Contractor (Contractor)

ORIG.                  
Contract Price               

Per Item

Change Order                  
Contract Price               

Per Item

Flowable Fill

(Increased) (Decreased) (Unchanged):

Original Contract Price:

Project No. 2023-032PW

CONTRACT CHANGE ORDER

CHANGE ORDER NO. 1

Van Buren Ave. Drainage Improvements

Townes Contruction Company, Inc.

City of Tupelo, MS

You are hereby requested to comply with the following changes from the contract plans and specifications:

DESCRIPTION

$0.00 

$0.00 

DESCRIPTION OF CHANGES

$0.00 

$205,608.00 

$0.00 

Removal of 48" CMP

58" x 36" RCAP

58" x 36" RCAP Flared End Section

R.C. Curb Inlet

Temporary Fencing

36" x 23" RCP

R.C. Junction Box w Manhole Lid

$2,500.00 

$41,250.00 

$3,500.00 

(Date)

This document will become a supplement to the contract and all provisions will apply hereto.

The Contract Total Including this and previous Change Orders Will Be:

The Contract Period Provided for Completion Will Be 

(Date)

(Owner's Architect/Engineer) (Date)

The amount of the Contract will be INCREASED by the Sum Of:       

 $                                               -   

JUSTIFICATION FOR CHANGES:

NET CHANGE IN CONTRACT PRICE

$149,328.00 

TOTALS

This change order is necessary to revise orginal contract quanties and add new pay items as necessary to address drainage system 
revisions made necessary to provide pipes, inlets and related infrastrucutre to better meet existing field conditions.

Previous Change Order(s) Amount:

$9,030.00 

 $                                373,513.00 

Townes Construction Co. Inc. 9-19-2023

09/19/2023

- 118 -

Item # 19.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Chuck Williams – Director of Public Works 

DATE September 25, 2023 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF CONTRACT APPROVAL ENDVILLE RD WIDENING 

PROJECT BID NO. 2023-022PW - CW 
  

 

Request:  

Request of approval of contract between Hodges Construction and the City of Tupelo concerning 

the Endville Road Widening Project Awarded on September 5, 2023. Bid No. 2023-022PW 

- 119 -

Item # 20.



 
 
 

 
 

 

@dabbscorp   
 OFFICE 662.840.4162 1005 N. Eason Boulevard 

  MOBILE 601.927.4012 Tupelo, MS 38804 

 

 
August 31, 2023 

 
 

Mr. Chuck Williams 
Director, Public Works Dept. 
604 Crossover Road 
Tupelo, Mississippi 38801 
 
 
REFERENCE:  RECOMMENDATION OF AWARD OF CONTRACT  
   ENDVILLE ROAD SAFETY IMPROVEMENTS 
   BID NO. 2023-022PW 
      
Dear Mr. Williams: 
 
I am pleased to submit to you, along with the Mayor and City Council, our conclusions and recommendations regarding 
the award of the construction contract for the referenced project.  Bids were opened at Tupelo City Hall on Wednesday, 
August 30, 2023 at 10:00 AM local time.   
 
This project includes the widening of Endville Road, installation of curb & gutter and related drainage improvements 
on Endville Road between Countrywood Road and Walsh Road to facilitate safety improvements along this corridor.  
As represented on the attached tabulation of bids, three bids were received for this project that ranged from 
$1,202,489.20 - $1,501,741.50 .  The low bid was from James A. Hodges Construction, Inc.  The bid was reviewed based 
on the bidding criteria established for the Project and it appears that the proper proposal documentation was 
submitted as required by the Contract Documents.   
 
Thus, it is our recommendation that the City Council award this contract in the amount of $1,202,489.20 to James A. 
Hodges Construction, Inc. for the referenced project and authorize the Mayor to execute the contract per the 
conditions set forth in the Contact Documents.  We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to you and to be 
involved with this project.   Please let us know should have any questions or require additional information. 
 
Sincerely, 
DABBS CORPORATION       

      

Dustin D. Dabbs, PE       
President         

 
C: Mr. Don Lewis, COO, City of Tupelo 
 Ms. Kim Hanna, CFO, City of Tupelo 
 Mr. Ben Logan, City Attorney, City of Tupelo 
 Mr. Dennis Bonds, PE, City Engineer, City of Tupelo 
   

  
Attachment: Bid Tabulation 

- 120 -

Item # 20.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

  

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Chuck Williams, Director – Public Works 

DATE August 30, 2023 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF BID APPROVAL FOR THE ENDVILLE ROAD 

WIDENING/SAFETY IMPROVMENTS PROJECT - BID NO. 2023-022PW - 

CW 
  

 

Request:  

Request for Bid Approval for the Endville Road Widening/Safety Improvements Project - 

Bid No. 2023-022PW Project 

 

Three bidders responded.  

We propose the project be awarded to the lowest and best bidder –  

 

Hodges Construction $1,202,489.20 

 

The other bid tabulations are as follows – 

 

Townes Construction   $1,366,418.00 

Cook and Sons   $1,501,741.50 

 

Request city council to approve and award bid to the lowest and best bidder, Hodges 

Construction, in the amount of $1,202,489.20 and to authorize after legal review the mayor and 

city clerk to execute the contract documents subject to subsequent ratification.    

 

 

- 419 -

Item # 23.
APPROVED 9-5-2023

- 121 -

Item # 20.



F-1 

CONTRACT 
 
THIS AGREEMENT, made this the _________ day of _________________________, 2023, by and 
between TUPELO, MISSISSIPPI hereinafter called "OWNER" and 
________________________________________________ doing business as (an Individual), (a 
Partnership), (a Limited Liability Company), or (a Corporation) hereinafter called "CONTRACTOR". 
 
WITNESSETH:  That for and in consideration of the payments and agreements hereinafter 
mentioned: 
 
1. The CONTRACTOR will commence and complete the construction of “ENDVILLE ROAD 

WIDENING/SAFETY IMPROVEMENTS” hereinafter called "PROJECT". 
 
2. The CONTRACTOR will furnish all of the material, supplies, tools, equipment, labor and other 

services necessary for the construction and completion of the PROJECT described herein. 
 
3. The CONTRACTOR will commence the work required by the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS within   

10   calendar days after the date of the NOTICE TO PROCEED and will complete the PROJECT 
within 90 calendar days, unless the period for completion is extended otherwise by the 
CONTRACT DOCUMENTS. 

 
4. The CONTRACTOR agrees to perform all of the work described in the CONTRACT 

DOCUMENTS, and comply with the terms therein for the sum of $                           or as shown 
in the BID Schedule. 

 
5. The term "CONTRACT DOCUMENTS" means and includes the following: 

 
A. This Agreement 
B. Instruction to Bidders 
C. General Conditions of Work dated MARCH 1, 2023 
D. Signed Copy of Proposal Form and Bidder's Certificate 
E. Executed Non-Collusion Form and Compliance Statements 
F. Executed Bid Bond 
G. Contract 
H. Executed Performance and Payment Bond 
I. NSPE General Conditions 
J. Special Contract Provisions 
K. SPECIFICATIONS issued by DABBS CORPORATION and dated JULY 2023. 
L. ADDENDA: 

No.          Dated ____________________ 
No.          Dated ____________________ 
No.          Dated ____________________ 
No.          Dated ____________________ 

M. All federal government conditions, specifications, regulations and requirements 
bound herein. 

 

- 122 -

Item # 20.



F-2 

6. The CONTRACTOR agrees to abide by the following consequences for failure to complete the 
project within the time specified in the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS: 

 
A. LIQUIDATED DAMAGES - CONTRACTOR shall pay to OWNER for each and every 

calendar day that he shall be in default in attaining Completion of the Work within 
the time stipulated the sum of $ 300.00 as liquidated damages.  The CONTRACTOR 
shall be liable for the continued assessment of liquidated damages of $300.00 for 
each calendar day that he shall be in default in completing the Work within the 
stipulated time as provided herein.  Since the OWNER’S losses are due to the 
CONTRACTOR’S delay and are not readily ascertainable, the amount provided herein 
for liquidated damages constitutes agreed damages and not a penalty. 

B. INDEMNIFICATION - In addition to payment of the above liquidated damages, 
CONTRACTOR shall fully indemnify and hold harmless the OWNER, the ENGINEER 
and their officers, personnel, and agents from and against: (1) any and all fines, civil 
penalties, and assessments levied by the State of Mississippi Office of Pollution 
Control, State of Mississippi Bureau of Environmental Health or any federal or state 
court for failure to meet, perform, or comply with any part of the time schedule as 
defined in the Contract Documents, and (2) any and all claims, damages, losses, 
expenses, liabilities, actions, judgments, and decrees of any and every nature 
whatsoever in any manner caused by, resulting from, or arising out of such failure. 

C. RIGHT OF SET-OFF - The OWNER, in addition to its other remedies under this 
Contract and in law and in equity, may deduct from monies which become due the 
CONTRACTOR under this Contract any unpaid amounts which become due to the 
OWNER under any of the foregoing provisions. 

 
7. The OWNER will pay to the CONTRACTOR in the manner and at such times set forth in the 

General Conditions such amount as required by the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS.  The OWNER 
shall retain five percent (5%) of the amount of each payment until final completion and 
acceptance of all work covered by the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS unless otherwise mutually 
agreed. 

 
8. The CONTRACTOR agrees to allow the OWNER or a duly authorized representatives thereof, 

access to books, documents, papers and records of the CONTRACTOR which are directly 
pertinent to the project which is the subject of this Contract, for the purpose of making 
audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions, and CONTRACTOR agrees to insert an 
identical access to records clause into all subcontracts. 

 
9. The CONTRACTOR shall be held responsible for forfeiture of monies in the event that an 

audit indicates his failure to keep adequate records, including change orders, force accounts 
and payroll records. 

 
10. Attached hereto and made a part of this Contract is the “Mandatory Addendum to All City 

of Tupelo Contracts” (3 pages) dated October 28, 2022.  The attached addendum shall be 
signed by the Contractor and executed by the City. 

 
 

- 123 -

Item # 20.



END OF SECTION 
F-3 

 
11. Attached hereto and made a part of this Contract is a Performance and Payment Bond, 

executed by a Surety Company doing business in the State of Mississippi, in the sum of: 
 

($ )   
(not less than one hundred percent of Contract amount) 

 
12. This Agreement shall be binding upon all parties hereto and their respective heirs, executors, 

administrators, successors, and assigns. 
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed or caused to be executed by their duly 
authorized officials, this Agreement in 3  copies each of which shall be deemed an original on the 
date first above written. 
 
 

CITY OF TUPELO / OWNER 
  
 
BY: 

 
 

NAME:  
TITLE:  

 
ATTEST:  
   
BY:   
NAME:   
TITLE:  (SEAL) 

 
 
 

CONTRACTOR 
  
 
BY: 

 
 

NAME:  
TITLE:  

 
ATTEST:  
   
BY:   
NAME:   
TITLE:  (SEAL) 

 

- 124 -

Item # 20.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Chuck Williams, Director of Public Works 

DATE September 29, 2023 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF BID APPROVAL 2023-041PW CITY HALL 

GENERATOR LABOR AND MATERIALS - CW 
  

 

Request:  

Request for bid approval Bid No. 2023-041PW City Hall Package Generator System - Labor and 

Materials – Contract 

 

4 Bidders Responded-  

 

We recommend for Best Bid due to local location of the authorized dealer to have availability 

and accessibility to warranty and replacement parts and due to pre-approved manufacturer – 

Liberty Electric  $312,485.00 

 

Other Bidders Pricing - 

Energy Systems SE $249,105.00 

Timmons Electric $395,500.00 

JE Stevens   $448,000.00 

 

 

- 125 -

Item # 21.



 

 

 

 

September 28, 2023 

 
Mr. Mark Timmons 
City of Tupelo, Mississippi 
Tupelo Public Works 
604 Crossover Road 
Tupelo, MS 38804 

RE: Package Generator System Labor and Materials Contract 

 City of Tupelo, Mississippi – City Hall 

Dear Mr. Timmons: 

We have evaluated the bids on the above referenced project.  After careful consideration and 
evaluation, we recommend you accept the total lump sum bid price of $312,485.00 from Liberty 
Electric for the Tupelo City Hall Package Natural Gas Generator System Labor and Materials 
Contract.  Although this is not the lowest bid, it is the next lowest.  Due to the critical City of 
Tupelo infrastructure that this generator is serving, Liberty Electric is recommended because of 
the local location of the authorized dealer to have availability and accessibility to warranty and 
replacement parts, if necessary.  Also, Kohler is a pre-approved manufacturer in the bid 
specifications, whereas, the lowest bid manufacturer is not a pre-approved manufacturer. 

The Purchase Order should be sent to: 

Liberty Electric 
P.O. Box 293 
Nettleton, MS  38858 

If there are any questions or you need additional information, please contact me at 901.261.4639. 

Sincerely, 

 

Allen & Hoshall 

 

 
 
Russell Scott Burleson, P.E. 
Sr. Vice President 
 

   
 

 

 

 

 

  

- 126 -

Item # 21.



- 127 -

Item # 21.



- 128 -

Item # 21.



- 129 -

Item # 21.



- 130 -

Item # 21.



- 131 -

Item # 21.



- 132 -

Item # 21.



- 133 -

Item # 21.



- 134 -

Item # 21.



- 135 -

Item # 21.



- 136 -

Item # 21.



- 137 -

Item # 21.



- 138 -

Item # 21.



- 139 -

Item # 21.



- 140 -

Item # 21.



- 141 -

Item # 21.



- 142 -

Item # 21.



- 143 -

Item # 21.



- 144 -

Item # 21.



- 145 -

Item # 21.



- 146 -

Item # 21.



- 147 -

Item # 21.



- 148 -

Item # 21.



- 149 -

Item # 21.



- 150 -

Item # 21.



- 151 -

Item # 21.



- 152 -

Item # 21.



- 153 -

Item # 21.



- 154 -

Item # 21.



- 155 -

Item # 21.



- 156 -

Item # 21.



- 157 -

Item # 21.



- 158 -

Item # 21.



- 159 -

Item # 21.



- 160 -

Item # 21.



Allen&Hoshall
engineers-a rchitects-surveyors

081423  2023-041PW 

 

 
 
M110102-EU BID ENVELOPE INFORMATION FORM 00100F - 1 

DOCUMENT 00100F 
BID ENVELOPE INFORMATION FORM 

 
 
BIDDER: 
 
This form is for the Bidder’s convenience as noted in Section 00100 - INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS. 
This form is not required; however, the information is required on the front of the Bid Envelope. 
 
Add the required information of all subcontractors proposed. Extend form as required. 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Cut and tape securely to front of Bid Envelope. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

END OF DOCUMENT 

 
 

Project:  Tupelo City Hall Natural Gas Generator Package System 

   

Owner:  City of Tupelo 

 

Address:  71 East Troy Street 
Tupelo, MS 38804 
 

Bidder:         

 

Address:    

 

Bidder License/Certificate No.   

 

Subcontractor:   

 

Address:   

 

Subcontractor License/Certificate No.    

J.E. Stevens Construction Group, LLC

1218 Cutter Ln  Brandon, MS 39047

24536-MC

Timmons Electric

4855 Cliff Gookin Blvd

21683-MC

- 161 -

Item # 21.



081423 2023-041PW  
 

  
 
M061596-EU PROPOSAL 00301 - 1 

DOCUMENT 00301 

 PROPOSAL  
 
Date:        
 
To: City of Tupelo  
  71 East Troy Street 
  Tupelo, MS 38804  
 
Gentlemen: 
 
The undersigned, hereinafter called the "Materialman", hereby proposes to sell and deliver to The City of 
Tupelo, MS, hereinafter called the "Owner", upon the terms and conditions herein stated, the material 
specified in the attached Specifications dated August, 2023 for the following sum: 
 

BASE BID:   
 
ITEM QUANTITY DESCRIPTION      TOTAL BID PRICE 
 
1   1  Natural Gas Generator System    $    
     And Associated Equipment, 
     Material, and Labor for Installation 
 
2   2  Authorized Contract Amendments   $ 20,000  
 
 
TOTAL BID PRICE           $ _______  
 

 
DELIVERY:   
 
Delivery Site: Tupelo City Hall 

 

Delivery Date:       

 
An alternate Delivery Date of   is proposed by the Materialman.  If this 
alternate Delivery Date is accepted by the Owner, a price reduction of $  is offered. 
 

GENERAL: 
 
In submitting this Proposal, the Materialman agrees as follows: 
 

The prices set forth herein do not include any sums which are or may be payable by the 
Materialman on account of taxes imposed by any taxing authority upon the sale, purchase, or 
use of the equipment.  If any such tax is applicable to the sale, purchase, or use of the 
equipment, the amount thereof shall be added to the purchase price and paid by the Owner. 

 
The Materialman agrees to the terms and conditions of the Document 00531 - MATERIALS 
CONTRACT. 

 
The prices set forth herein are firm if accepted by the Owner within thirty (30) days and shall 
include the cost of delivery to the job site.  The material shall be delivered to the Delivery Site on 
or before the Delivery Date. 

 
The Materialman shall be responsible for securing all permits required for shipping to the 

9/20/2023

428,000.00

448,000.00

68 weeks from approval

NA

NA

- 162 -

Item # 21.



081423 2023-041PW  
 

  
 
M061596-EU PROPOSAL 00301 - 2 

Delivery Site and shall be responsible for any damages to road and utilities or other damages 
caused by the Materialman or his Delivery Agent during shipment to Delivery Site. 
Notice of Shipment - The Materialman shall notify the Owner at the following times: 

1. 10 days prior to shipment. 
2. 24 hours prior to shipment. 
3. 24 hours prior to delivery. 

 
Shipments arriving after 2:00 p.m. on weekdays or arriving on weekends or holidays shall not be 
unloaded until the next working day and the Materialman shall be responsible for any demurrage. 

 
Failure to provide notice shall result in Materialman being responsible for any demurrage charges 
resulting from the unavailability of equipment to unload equipment. 

 
The Materialman agrees that all requests for time extensions shall be in writing, and that only 
such time extensions as are granted by the Owner in writing shall be considered. 

 
Time is of the essence in order for the Owner to comply with established construction schedules. 
Should the Materialman fail to complete the terms of this Proposal by the Delivery Date, after all 
time extensions granted by the Owner have been added, then in that event the Owner shall have 
and is hereby given the right to deduct and retain out of such monies which may then be due, or 
which may become due and payable to the Materialman, the DAMAGE AMOUNT per calendar 
day as liquidated damages for each and every day that Certification is delayed beyond the 
Delivery Date.  The Materialman and Owner agree that liquidated damages are for costs 
associated with project delay and not as a penalty and that proof of such losses or damages 
shall not be required.  The DAMAGE AMOUNT shall be $300 per day. 

 
The GENERAL CONDITIONS and SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS describe the Owner’s 

  requirements as to Performance and Payment Bonds.  When the successful Bidder delivers 
the executed Materials contract to the Owner, it must be accompanied by the required  
Performance and Payment Bonds. 

 
Proposal requirements, as outlined in the technical sections, shall be submitted with this proposal. Failure 
to submit requested data can result in Bid rejection. 
 
The qualifications of the Materialman’s Field Services Representative for field inspection, testing and 
certification shall be attached to this proposal.  Include the name of the proposed field service firm, if 
these services are not supplied by employees of the manufacturer.  A schedule of field tests, applicable 
ANSI standards and test limits shall be submitted by the Materialman.  The qualifications of the Field 
Service Representatives or Field Service Firm will be included in the overall evaluation of this proposal. 
 
In estimating the lowest cost to the Owner as one of the factors in deciding the award of an order, the 
Owner will consider, in addition to the price quoted in the proposal, the following: 

 
1. Stated exceptions to the specifications. 
2. Method of delivery. 
3. Warranty. 
4. Installation, erection and operating costs. 
5. Delivery time. 
6. Work history on previous projects. 

 
Failure to submit bid evaluation data as specified can lead to bid rejection. 
 
Title of each equipment item shall pass to the Owner upon: 

1. Delivery at location specified. 
2. Satisfactory inspection for in transit damage. 
3. Satisfactory installation and field test. 
4. Acceptance by the Owner following completion of Item 3. 

- 163 -

Item # 21.



081423 2023-041PW  
 

  
 
M061596-EU PROPOSAL 00301 - 3 

5. Payment: See Document 00531 - MATERIALS CONTRACT, Article II Payment.The Materialman 
shall submit bids on this PROPOSAL.  Submit complete PROPOSAL in (2) two unaltered copies with all 
blank spaces completed.  There shall be no exceptions for basic bid submitted by the Materialman; 
however, an alternate, with exceptions, may be bid as an attachment to a basic bid. 
 
The Materialman acknowledges that he has received the following Addenda (insert Addenda number(s) 
and date(s) or NONE): 
 
ADDENDUM NUMBER      DATE 
 
    
 
 
    

- 164 -

Item # 21.



081423 2023-041PW  
 

  
 
M061596-EU PROPOSAL 00301 - 4 

EXCEPTIONS:  Any and all exceptions that the Materialman takes to the attached specifications shall be 
itemized on this proposal page even though the exceptions may be covered elsewhere in the bid 
materials.  The bidder shall indicate to which items exceptions apply or indicate no exceptions. 
 
Specification Section  
Associated with EXCEPTION     Description of Exception 
 
                                                                        
 
                                             
 
                              
 
                         
 
                         
 
                         
 
                         
 
                         
 
                         
 
                         
 
                         
 
                         
 
                         
 
                          
 
                         
 
                         
 
                         
 
                         
 
                         
 
                         
 
                         
 
 
 

- 165 -

Item # 21.



081423 2023-041PW  
 

  
 
M061596-EU PROPOSAL 00301 - 5 

It is understood by the undersigned that the Owner retains the privilege of accepting or rejecting all or any 
part of this Proposal and to waive any informalities or technicalities therein.   
 
MATERIALMAN:  
 
BY:          TITLE:   
 
MAILING 
ADDRESS:        DATE:   
 
    TELEPHONE:    
 
    FAX:    
STREET 
ADDRESS:        EMAIL:       
 
          
 
          

 
 
 
 
PRINCIPAL 
CONTACT:        TELEPHONE:  
 
          EMAIL:   
 
ALTERNATE 
CONTACT:        TELEPHONE:  
 
          EMAIL:   
 
 
 
 
 
 END OF DOCUMENT 

Nixon Power (Kohler)w

Sterling Robinson Outside Sales

326 Leggett Dr

Richland, MS 39218

9/20/2023

833-777-6937

sterling@nixonpower.com

Joshua Stevens

Jonah Stevens

601-826-2480

joshua@jestevensgroup.com

601-946-4447

office@jestevensgroup.com

- 166 -

Item # 21.



081423 2023-041PW  
 

  
 
M091509-EU BIDDERS QUALIFICATION STATEMENT 00420 - 1 

DOCUMENT 00420 
BIDDERS QUALIFICATION STATEMENT 

 

 

The contents of this statement are CONFIDENTIAL. This Document is to be submitted separately from 

the Bidding Documents. See Document 00100, INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS. 

 

Submitted by: 

Name of Organization            

Name of Individual                      

Title               

Address             

                                     

Telephone                                

Email Address                                

             

BUSINESS ORGANIZATION INFORMATION: 

Check one:  � Corporation  � Partnership � Joint Venture � Sole Proprietorship 

 

If Corporation: 

a.  Date and State of Incorporation 

                   

b. List of Executive Officers 

Name  Title 

           

           

           

 

If Partnership: 

a. Date and State of Organization 

                                                                                 

b. Name of Current General Partners 

         

         

c. Type of Partnership:  

� General   � Publicly Traded  � Limited  � Other (describe):                               

J.E. Stevens Construction Group, LLC

Joshua Stevens

President

1218 Cutter Ln

Brandon, MS 39047

(601) 826-2480

joshua@jestevensgroup.com

x

- 167 -

Item # 21.



081423 2023-041PW  
 

  
 
M091509-EU BIDDERS QUALIFICATION STATEMENT 00420 - 2 

If Joint Venture: 

a. Date and State of Organization 

           

b. Name, Address, and Form of Organization of Joint Venture Partners: (indicate managing partner 

with an asterisk*) 

          

         

         

 

If Sole Proprietorship: 

a. Date and State of Organization  

         

b. Name and Address of Owner or Owners 

         

         

         

 

GENERAL BUSINESS INFORMATION: 

1. Name of Surety Company and name, address, and phone number of agent. 

           

         

            

                   

2. What is your approximate total bonding capacity? 

� $500,000 to $2,000,000          � $2,000,000 to $5,000,000   

� $5,000,000 to $10,000,000     � $10,000,000 or more 

 

3. Is your organization a member of a controlled group of corporations as defined in  

 I.R.C. Sec 1563?   � Yes � No  

If yes, show names and addresses of affiliated companies 

         

         

 
4. Describe the permanent safety program you maintain within your organization. Use 
 attachment if necessary. 

         

         

 

Joshua Stevens

1218 Cutter Ln

Brandon, MS 39047

FBBI Insurance, Wes Price. 601-208-3081

248 East Capitol Street, Suite 1200 | Jackson, MS 39201

9/20/2021 Tennessee

x

x

OSHA 30 and Lock out tag out

- 168 -

Item # 21.



081423 2023-041PW  
 

  
 
M091509-EU BIDDERS QUALIFICATION STATEMENT 00420 - 3 

5. Furnish the following information with respect to an accredited banking institution familiar  with 
your organization. 
 

Name of Bank         

Address       

        

Account Manager       

Telephone       

 
GENERAL PROJECT INFORMATION: 
 
6. Value of Electric Work completed during the last calendar year $     
                          
7.  Value of all Work completed for the last calendar year $                                                  
   
8. Attach a Schedule A listing major Electric projects, similar to the proposed Project, completed by 

this organization in the past three (3) years, with contact names and phone numbers. (If joint 
venture, list each participant’s projects separately). List dollar value of Electric Work. 

 
9. Attach a Schedule B listing current Electric projects under construction by this organization, with 

contact names and phone numbers. (If joint venture, list each participant’s projects separately). 
 
10. Has your organization ever failed to complete any construction contract awarded to it?  

� Yes  � No 

If yes, describe circumstances on attachment. 

 
11. In the last five years, has your organization ever failed to substantially complete a project in a 

timely manner? 

� Yes � No 

 
12. Has any Corporate officer, partner, joint venture participant or proprietor ever failed to complete a 

project in a timely manner while an employee/officer of another firm?  

� Yes  � No 

If yes, describe circumstances on attachment. 

 
13. Contractor’s License Number for the state(s) in which this organization is licensed to do business: 
            
 
            
 
I hereby certify that the information submitted herewith, including any attachment is true to the best of my 

knowledge and belief. 

By:       

Title:       

Dated:       

END of DOCUMENT 

Priority One Bank

1400 West Government Street

Meaghan Ahlberg

(601) 414-3642

Brandon, MS 39042

24536-MC

Joshua Stevens

President

9/20/2023

500,000.00 +

6,000,000.00 +

x

x

x

- 169 -

Item # 21.



J.E. Stevens Construction Group/ Jonah Stevens

1. Element Hotel- Nashville, TN $3,000,000.00

Schedule A

2. WEREHN Apartments- Nashville, TN $6,000,000.00

3. Project Journey- Nashville, TN $50,000,000.00

- Jonah Stevens

- Jonah Stevens

- Jonah Stevens

4. Bureau of Land Management- Pearl, MS $1,000,000.00 GC $180,000.00 Electrical

- J.E. Stevens Construction Group

- 170 -

Item # 21.



Timmons Electric

1. Assisted Nursing Home Generator- Starkville, MS $300,000.00 +

Schedule B

2. City of Tupelo Fair Park- Tupelo, MS $300,000.00+

3. Cube Smart Storage Facility- Tupelo, MS $300,000.00 +

- 171 -

Item # 21.



- 172 -

Item # 21.



- 173 -

Item # 21.



- 174 -

Item # 21.



- 175 -

Item # 21.



- 176 -

Item # 21.



- 177 -

Item # 21.



- 178 -

Item # 21.



- 179 -

Item # 21.



- 180 -

Item # 21.



- 181 -

Item # 21.



- 182 -

Item # 21.



- 183 -

Item # 21.



- 184 -

Item # 21.



- 185 -

Item # 21.



- 186 -

Item # 21.



- 187 -

Item # 21.



- 188 -

Item # 21.



- 189 -

Item # 21.



- 190 -

Item # 21.



- 191 -

Item # 21.



- 192 -

Item # 21.



- 193 -

Item # 21.



- 194 -

Item # 21.



- 195 -

Item # 21.



- 196 -

Item # 21.



- 197 -

Item # 21.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Johnny Timmons, Manager TW&L 

DATE September 27, 2023 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF AWARD OF BID # 2023-044WL FOR B&B SEWER 

OUTFALL (SRF)  JT  
  

 

Request:  

 

I recommend the following bid award for consideration at your regular meeting on Tuesday, 

October 3, 2023: 

 

Bid No. 2023-044WL – B&B Sewer Outfall to the lowest qualified bid submitted by Enscor, LLC 

in the amount of $3,356,603.20 as recommended by Cook Coggin Engineers.   

 

 

   

 

 

 

 
 

- 198 -

Item # 22.



- 199 -

Item # 22.



- 200 -

Item # 22.



- 201 -

Item # 22.



- 202 -

Item # 22.



- 203 -

Item # 22.



- 204 -

Item # 22.



- 205 -

Item # 22.



- 206 -

Item # 22.



- 207 -

Item # 22.



- 208 -

Item # 22.



- 209 -

Item # 22.



- 210 -

Item # 22.



- 211 -

Item # 22.



- 212 -

Item # 22.



- 213 -

Item # 22.



- 214 -

Item # 22.



- 215 -

Item # 22.



- 216 -

Item # 22.



- 217 -

Item # 22.



- 218 -

Item # 22.



- 219 -

Item # 22.



- 220 -

Item # 22.



- 221 -

Item # 22.



- 222 -

Item # 22.



- 223 -

Item # 22.



- 224 -

Item # 22.



- 225 -

Item # 22.



- 226 -

Item # 22.



- 227 -

Item # 22.



- 228 -

Item # 22.



- 229 -

Item # 22.



- 230 -

Item # 22.



- 231 -

Item # 22.



- 232 -

Item # 22.



- 233 -

Item # 22.



- 234 -

Item # 22.



- 235 -

Item # 22.



- 236 -

Item # 22.



- 237 -

Item # 22.



- 238 -

Item # 22.



- 239 -

Item # 22.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Johnny Timmons, Manager TW&L 

DATE September 28, 2023 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF THE TRAFFIC COMMITTEE 

MINUTES OF SEPTEMBER 21, 2023 JT  
  

 

Request: 

Attached for your review and approval are the Tupelo Traffic Committee summary and minutes 

from our meeting on September 21, 2023. 

 

- 240 -

Item # 23.



 

 

Memo 
 
To: Tupelo City Council 
 
From: Tupelo Traffic Committee  
 
Subject:   Review/Approve Traffic Committee Minutes of September 21, 2023 
 
Date: September 28, 2023 
  
 
Attached are the minutes of the Traffic Committee Meeting on September 21, 2023.  The 
following is a summary of their actions. 
 
Old Business: 
 
1. A request from Mr. Jack Foster, 1018 Ridgepark Drive, Tel. 662-231-4095, 

jbfoster67@gmail.com, for the installation of a 4-way stop at Jeff Homan Blvd and Graham 
Drive (currently a 2-way stop on Graham Drive). 
 
Action: Denied 
 

2. A request from Ms. Bridgett Betts, Dynasty College at 449 N. Front Street, Tel. 662-841-
0710, for the following: 
a) A reduction of the speed limit to 30 mph near the entrance to the Dynasty College 

parking lot 
b) Signs and flashing lights on the north and south sides of the entrance, warning drivers 

that they are in a school zone 
c) A crosswalk on Front Street from the school’s parking lot to the public parking lot, north 

of the Tupelo Police Department 
d) Permission for students to park in the public parking lot north of the Tupelo Police 

Department. 
 
Action: Denied (a), (b), and (c). Approved (d) if okay with TPD. 
 

New Business 
 
1. A request from Mr. Jessie King, 1184 Indian Trail, Tel. 662-842-3948, for the installation of 

“No Parking” signs on both sides of Indian Trail up to Hilda Avenue. 
 
 Action: Approved 
 
2. A request from Ms. Daijah Thompson, 505 Perry Avenue, Tel. 662-322-6226, for the 

installation of “Children At Play” signs on Perry Avenue. 

- 241 -

Item # 23.

mailto:jbfoster67@gmail.com


 

 

Tupelo City Council 
September 28, 2023 
Page 2 
 
 Action: Approved 
 
3. A request from Mr. John Gaston, 1764 Columbine Drive, Tel. 662-401-0048, for the 

installation of speed tables on Columbine Drive. 
 

Action: Does not qualify 
 

4. A request from Mr. Trae Belk, 814 West Bay Circle, Tel. 662-231-9173, for the installation 
of speed tables on Mahogany Drive (Wildwood Subdivision). 

 
Action: Postponed 

 
5. A request from Mr. Kenneth McNeal, 1251 Dogwood Drive, Tel. 662-255-9894, for the 

installation of speed tables or multiple stop signs on Dogwood Drive to slow down traffic. 
 

Action: Denied 
 

6. A request from Mr. Cal Smith, 1218 Marshall Street, Tel. 662-841-0800, for the installation 
of the following on Marshall Street: 
a) Three (3) speed tables 
b) Two (2) speed limit signs 
c) Two (2) “Children At Play” signs 

 
 Action: Approved 
 
7. A request from Mr. Martin Herman, President of Spring Lake HOA, Tel. 901-219-9202, for 

the installation of additional speed limit signs on Columbine Drive, Dogwood Drive and 
Spring Lake Drive.  
 
Action: No action needed 
 

8. A request from Mr. Lonn Richardson, Cedar Pointe HOA, Tel. 662-610-1258, for the 
installation of a “No Parking Zone” around the pool area on Arlington Drive. 

 
Action: Approved 

 
9. A request from Mr. Jimmy Blaylock for the installation of a traffic signal at the intersection 

of Green Street and Elliott Street. 
 
 Action: Postponed 
 
10. A request from Councilman Buddy Palmer for the installation of “Deer Crossing” signs on 

Veterans, from Main Street to Hamm Street. 

- 242 -

Item # 23.



 

 

Tupelo City Council 
September 28, 2023 
Page 3 
 
 Action: Approved 
 
11. A request from Mr. Larry Sanders, 2326 Camelot Drive, for the installation of “No Big 

Trucks” signs. 
 

Action: Postponed 
 

12. A request from Ms. Makaela Curbow, 2411 William Drive, Tel. 662-687-4443, for the 
installation of “Slow – Children At Play” or “Autistic Child Area” on William Drive. 

 
Action: Approved “Children At Play” signs 

 
13. A request from Mr. Johnny Timmons, TW&L Manager, to change the turn lanes on 

Kirkwood Road. 
 
 Action: Denied 
 

- 243 -

Item # 23.



 

 

MINUTES OF THE TUPELO TRAFFIC COMMITTEE 
SEPTEMBER 21, 2023 

 
A regular meeting of the Tupelo Traffic Committee was held on September 21, 2023, at 9:00 am in the 
3rd floor conference room at City Hall.  Members present were Mr. Dennis Bonds, Mr. Norman Cruse, 
Officer Patrick Johnson, Ms. Laura Kramer, and Mr. Barton Wynn. Mr. Brent Spears was present to 
represent the Public Works Department.  Mr. Michael Montgomery, Mr. Emmitt Foster and Mr. Mike 
Williams were absent. 
 
Audience members were Mr. Johnny Timmons, Manager TW&L, Mr. Don Lewis, COO, Mr. Chuck 
Williams, Public Works Director, Officer Jeffery Griffin and Mrs. Janet Gaston, Councilwoman Ward 
6. 
 
Call to Order 
The meeting was called to order by Mr. Dennis Bonds. 
 
Old Business  
 
1. A request from Mr. Jack Foster, 1018 Ridgepark Drive, Tel. 662-231-4095, 

jbfoster67@gmail.com, for the installation of a 4-way stop at Jeff Homan Blvd and Graham 
Drive (currently a 2-way stop on Graham Drive). 
 
Officer Johnson noted that the TPD only has a few crash reports at this intersection.  Therefore, 
Mr. Dennis Bonds made a motion to deny this request. Mr. Barton Wynn seconded the motion and 
it passed unanimously.  

 
2. A request from Ms. Bridgett Betts, Dynasty College at 449 N. Front Street, Tel. 662-841-0710, 

for the following: 
a) A reduction of the speed limit to 30 mph near the entrance to the Dynasty College parking 

lot 
b) Signs and flashing lights on the north and south sides of the entrance, warning drivers 

that they are in a school zone 
c) A crosswalk on Front Street from the school’s parking lot to the public parking lot, north 

of the Tupelo Police Department 
d) Permission for students to park in the public parking lot north of the Tupelo Police 

Department. 
 
Mr. Dennis Bonds made a motion to deny parts (a), (b) and (c) and approve part (d) if it is okay 
with the TPD. Ms. Laura Kramer seconded the motion and it passed unanimously. 
 

New Business 
 
1. A request from Mr. Jessie King, 1184 Indian Trail, Tel. 662-842-3948, for the installation of 

“No Parking” signs on both sides of Indian Trail up to Hilda Avenue. 
 

Mr. Dennis Bonds made a motion to approve this request which was seconded by Mr. Norman 
Cruse. The motion passed unanimously.  

 
 
 

- 244 -

Item # 23.

mailto:jbfoster67@gmail.com


 

 

Tupelo Traffic Committee  
September 21, 2023 
Page 2 

 
2. A request from Ms. Daijah Thompson, 505 Perry Avenue, Tel. 662-322-6226, for the 

installation of “Children At Play” signs on Perry Avenue. 
 

Mr. Norman Cruse made a motion to approve this request. Officer Patrick Johnson seconded the 
motion and it passed unanimously. 

 
3. A request from Mr. John Gaston, 1764 Columbine Drive, Tel. 662-401-0048, for the 

installation of speed tables on Columbine Drive. 
 

Mr. Dennis Bonds noted that Columbine Drive is classified as a Local Road and does not qualify 
for speed tables. 

 
4. A request from Mr. Trae Belk, 814 West Bay Circle, Tel. 662-231-9173, for the installation of 

speed tables on Mahogany Drive (Wildwood Subdivision). 
 

Mr. Dennis Bonds noted that Mahogany Drive is classified as a residential street and is eligible for 
speed tables. He also noted that there is not an established HOA in this neighborhood. Several 
members voiced concerns about the length of the street and if there is an actual speeding problem. 
Mr. Bonds then made a motion to postpone this item until further information could be obtained 
from Mr. Belk. The motion was seconded by Mr. Barton Wynn and it passed unanimously.  

 
5. A request from Mr. Kenneth McNeal, 1251 Dogwood Drive, Tel. 662-255-9894, for the 

installation of speed tables or multiple stop signs on Dogwood Drive to slow down traffic. 
 

Mr. Dennis Bonds noted that Dogwood Drive is classified as a residential street and is eligible for 
speed tables. He also noted that the MUTCD does not allow stop signs to be placed for speed 
control. Mr. Bonds stated that these types of requests should come from the Homeowner’s 
Association in neighborhoods where one is established and active. Therefore, he made a motion to 
deny both parts of this request and allow the HOA to request if desired. Ms. Laura Kramer 
seconded the motion and it passed unanimously.  

 
6. A request from Mr. Cal Smith, 1218 Marshall Street, Tel. 662-841-0800, for the installation 

of the following on Marshall Street: 
a) Three (3) speed tables 
b) Two (2) speed limit signs 
c) Two (2) “Children At Play” signs 

 
Mr. Dennis Bonds noted that Marshall Street is classified as a residential street and is eligible for 
speed tables. He also noted that there is not an HOA established in this neighborhood. Mr. Cal 
Smith provided a completed petition with the required signatures. (See attachment “A”.) Mr. 
Norman Cruse made a motion to approve the installation of two (2) speed tables, two (2) speed 
limit signs (20 mph) and two (2) “Children At Play” signs. Mr. Brent Spears seconded the motion 
and it passed unanimously.  
 
 
 

- 245 -

Item # 23.



 

 

Tupelo Traffic Committee  
September 21, 2023 
Page 3 

 
7. A request from Mr. Martin Herman, President of Spring Lake HOA, Tel. 901-219-9202, for 

the installation of additional speed limit signs on Columbine Drive, Dogwood Drive and 
Spring Lake Drive.  
 
Mr. Chuck Williams, Public Works Director, noted that these types of requests, if there’s no 
change to the existing speed limit, can be made directly to the Public Works Department.  
Therefore, no action was needed by the Traffic Committee.   
 

8. A request from Mr. Lonn Richardson, Cedar Pointe HOA, Tel. 662-610-1258, for the 
installation of a “No Parking Zone” around the pool area on Arlington Drive. 

 
Mr. Dennis Bonds stated that the pool area at Cedar Pointe is located between the intersection of 
Arlington Drive and Cressant Street and the curve on Arlington Drive and that parking on the street 
in this area could cause a sight hazard for through traffic. Residents going to the pool can also park 
on Cressant Street or Bartlett Lane which also run beside the pool area and would not cause a 
hazard. Officer Patrick Johnson made a motion to approve this request which was seconded by Mr. 
Dennis Bonds. The motion passed unanimously.  

 
9. A request from Mr. Jimmy Blaylock for the installation of a traffic signal at the intersection 

of Green Street and Elliott Street. 
 

Mr. Dennis Bonds made a motion to postpone this item until crash data and a traffic count could be 
obtained to see if it meets any of the eight (8) warrant conditions for a traffic signal. Mr. Norman 
Cruse seconded the motion and it passed unanimously.  

 
10. A request from Councilman Buddy Palmer for the installation of “Deer Crossing” signs on 

Veterans, from Main Street to Hamm Street. 
 

Officer Patrick Johnson made a motion to install these signs in front of the Aquatic Center. The 
motion was seconded by Ms. Laura Kramer and it passed unanimously. 

 
11. A request from Mr. Larry Sanders, 2326 Camelot Drive, for the installation of “No Big 

Trucks” signs. 
 

Officer Johnson stated that he believes this type of request is already covered by Code 
Enforcement without the need of signs. Mr. Dennis Bonds made a motion to postpone this item and 
check with Code Enforcement. Officer Johnson seconded the motion and it passed unanimously.  

 
12. A request from Ms. Makaela Curbow, 2411 William Drive, Tel. 662-687-4443, for the 

installation of “Slow – Children At Play” or “Autistic Child Area” on William Drive. 
 

Mr. Barton Wynn made a motion to approve the installation of “Children At Play” signs which was 
seconded by Mr. Dennis Bonds. The motion passed unanimously. 

 
 
 

- 246 -

Item # 23.



 

 

Tupelo Traffic Committee  
September 21, 2023 
Page 4 
 
13. A request thru Mr. Johnny Timmons, TW&L Manager, to change the turn lanes on 

Kirkwood Road. 
 

Mr. Johnny Timmons stated that he had received a request from some residents on Kirkwood Road to 
change the striping where Kirkwood Road intersects Cliff Gookin from the current “Left Turn Only” and 
“Straight Thru and Right Turn” to “Left Turn and Straight Thru” and “Right Turn Only”. The residents state 
that the amount of traffic on Cliff Gookin trying to get into the high school prevents people from turning 
right onto Cliff Gookin and backs up traffic on Kirkwood Road. There was much discussion about this issue 
with concern that this change would not improve the flow of traffic coming off of Kirkwood Road. Mr. 
Norman Cruse made a motion to deny this request. Ms. Laura Kramer seconded the motion and it passed 
unanimously.  

 
With there being no further business, Mr. Norman Cruse made a motion to adjourn the meeting. Mr. 
Barton Wynn seconded the motion and it passed unanimously. 
 
Submitted by:  Pam Blassingame 
 
 
 
 

- 247 -

Item # 23.



ATTACHMENT "A"

- 248 -

Item # 23.



- 249 -

Item # 23.



- 250 -

Item # 23.



- 251 -

Item # 23.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Stephen N. Reed, Assistant City Attorney 

DATE September 28, 2023 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF AN AMENDMENT TO THE CITY OF 

TUPELO EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK POLICY 608: DRUG AND ALCOHOL-

FREE WORKPLACE SR 
  

 

Request:  

Please approve an amendment to the Employee Handbook containing provisions that 

address the use of medicinal cannabis by City employees, and the implementation of a 

drug testing policy in accordance with State of Mississippi law.  

- 252 -

Item # 24.



                    

City of Tupelo Employee Handbook Policy# 608 

Sec. 6 – Employee Conduct Effective Date   

608 Drug and Alcohol-Free Workplace Supersedes: 1/1/19 

 

 

608 Drug and Alcohol-Free Workplace  

It is the City of Tupelo's desire to provide a drug-free, healthful, and safe workplace. To promote this goal, 

employees are required to report to work in an appropriate mental and physical condition necessary to 

perform the duties and functions of their employment with the City of Tupelo.  

 

Employees shall not manufacture, sell, distribute, solicitate, possess with intent to sell or distribute, or use 

alcohol or any other drug, whether on or off duty and whether on or off any premises owned or occupied 

by the City of Tupelo. The legal use of medically prescribed drugs, except as prescribed in Policy 608.1, is 

permitted while the employee is on duty only if it does not impair an employee's ability to perform the 

essential functions of the job and does not endanger other individuals in the workplace or the general public. 

 

Employees are hereby noticed of the Drug-Free Workplace Workers' Compensation Premium Reduction 

Act contained in Miss. Code Ann. § 71-3-201 et seq., and the existence of all rights, privileges, and 

obligations contained in the aforesaid code section. All records, documents and communications made by 

and between the City of Tupelo and an employee related to the Drug-Free Workplace Policy shall be 

maintained confidentially unless otherwise compelled by law to produce those records, documents or 

communications.  

 

To enforce this policy, all employees of the City of Tupelo are subject to the Drug and Alcohol Testing 

Program contained in policy 608.2. If an employee tests positive for any alcohol, drug or other substance 

in violation of this policy, or any other employment policy, the employee shall experience disciplinary 

action, up to and including immediate termination of employment, and/or required participation in a 

substance abuse rehabilitation or treatment program. Such violations may also have legal consequences in 

accordance with the laws of the State of Mississippi and the United States of America.  

 

608.1 Medical Cannabis   

In accordance with the terms of the Mississippi Medical Cannabis Act (Miss. Code Ann. § 41-137-1, et 

seq.), the City of Tupelo is in no way obligated to allow the use, ingestion, or possession of medical 

cannabis or any medical cannabis product by employees while employed by the City of Tupelo; nor is the 

City of Tupelo prohibited from refusing to hire, discharging, disciplining, or otherwise taking an adverse 

employment action against an individual with respect to hiring, discharging, tenure, terms, conditions, or 

privileges of employment as a result, in whole or in part, of that individual’s medical use of medical 

cannabis or any medical cannabis product, regardless of the individual’s impairment or lack of 

impairment resulting from the medical use of medical cannabis.  

All employees of the City of Tupelo are prohibited from possessing, smoking, ingesting, or otherwise 

engaging in the use of, or being under the influence of, medical cannabis, regardless of form or 

characteristic, whether on or off duty and whether on or off any premises owned or occupied by the City 

of Tupelo. Any employee having participated in a properly issued drug screening test in accordance with 

Policy 608.2, and is shown to have the presence of any medical cannabis-related intoxicant (including, but 

not limited to, THC and CBD) in their system, shall be in violation of this policy. Employees who violate 

the drug-free workplace policy remain subject to disciplinary action, up to and including termination of 

employment.  

- 253 -

Item # 24.



                    

City of Tupelo Employee Handbook Policy# 608 

Sec. 6 – Employee Conduct Effective Date   

608 Drug and Alcohol-Free Workplace Supersedes: 1/1/19 

 

 

608.2 Drug and Alcohol Testing  

 
The City of Tupelo finds that, as a matter of policy, employees shall not possess, use or sell illegal drugs 

and should not be under the influence of any intoxicating substance while on duty. To enforce the City’s 

policies concerning the possession and use of drugs and alcohol by employees and candidates for 

employment, the City of Tupelo shall conduct random and routine testing for the presence of drugs and 

alcohol. This policy is implemented in accordance with Miss. Code Ann. § 71-7-1 et seq., otherwise 

known as the Mississippi Drug and Alcohol Testing Act. Employees of the City of Tupelo are hereby 

advised of their rights and obligations contained in the act.  

 

Circumstances Under Which Testing Will Occur 

 

The following is a description of the circumstances under which City of Tupelo employees will be 

required to undergo drug and alcohol testing:  

a. The City of Tupelo will require all applicants for employment to undergo a post-offer, pre-

employment, drug and alcohol test as a condition of the employment. Refusal to submit to the test 

will be grounds for withdrawal of the offer of employment. A confirmed positive test result will 

also be grounds for the withdrawal of any offer of employment or termination if results are 

obtained after the first day of employment.  

b. The City of Tupelo will allow reasonable suspicion drug and alcohol testing based on a belief that 

an employee is using or has used drugs and/or alcohol in violation of the polices of the City of 

Tupelo. Reasonable belief under this policy that an employee is using or has used drugs and/or 

alcohol in violation of the policies of the City of Tupelo will be drawn from specific objective 

and articulable facts and reasonable inferences drawn from those facts in light of experience. And 

may be based upon, among other things, the following:  

a. Observable phenomena, such as direct observation of drug and alcohol use and/or 

symptoms or manifestations of being under the influence of a drug or alcohol;  

b. Abnormal conduct or erratic behavior while at work, excessive or pattern absenteeism, 

excessive tardiness, or marked deterioration in work performance;  

c. A report of drug use provided by reliable and credible sources and which has been 

independently corroborated;  

d. Evidence that an individual has tampered with a drug and alcohol test during his 

employment with the City of Tupelo;  

e. Information that an employee is involved in the use, possession, sale, solicitation or 

transfer of drugs or alcohol while performing any job, duty, task or assignment related to 

their employment with the City of Tupelo, whether on premises or not.  

c. The City of Tupelo, through an independent provider, will conduct random, neutral selection drug 

and alcohol tests which shall be required of all employees.  

d. The City of Tupelo, through an independent provider, may also require an employee to be tested 

for the presence of drugs and/or alcohol in the event that there is an on-the-job accident or 

incident. The employee shall be required to be available for testing immediately following the 

accident/incident and for the next 32-hours immediately after the accident/incident and shall 

refrain from the use of drugs and alcohol until testing is complete.  

 

 

 

- 254 -

Item # 24.



                    

City of Tupelo Employee Handbook Policy# 608 

Sec. 6 – Employee Conduct Effective Date   

608 Drug and Alcohol-Free Workplace Supersedes: 1/1/19 

 

 
Substances Tested For 

 

The City of Tupelo may test employees for the presence of alcohol, marijuana, cannabidiol (CBD), 

tetrahydrocannabinol (THC), cocaine, amphetamines, opiates, phencyclidine (PCP or Angel Dust), and/or 

any other substance having psychological and/or physiological effects on a human being, including 

controlled dangerous substances and controlled substance analogs or volatile substances, which through 

its deliberate introduction into the body, may impair a person’s ability to perform any task, assignment, 

duty or function of their employment. The City of Tupelo reserves the right to add additional substances 

to the testing protocol on a determination that the best interest of the City of Tupelo will be served. The 

addition of a substance or substances to the testing protocol will only be done following a thirty (30) day 

employee notification period.  

 

Effect of a Positive Drug and/or Alcohol Test Result 

 

Any employee who has a positive test result for any of the substances listed above or who otherwise 

violates this policy will experience disciplinary action, up to and including immediate termination of 

employment. An employee who refuses to submit to drug and alcohol testing administered in accordance 

with this policy shall be immediately terminated.  

 

Drug and Alcohol Testing Procedures 

 

The City of Tupelo will contract with a provider to conduct drug and alcohol testing under this policy. 

The provider will conduct all of the tests required under this policy to include specimen collection, chain 

of custody procedures, obtaining necessary laboratory results, medical review officer services, and any 

other services incident to the drug and alcohol testing program. Testing will conform to scientifically 

accepted analytical standards.  

 

Employees and job applicants identified under this policy to be alcohol/drug tested shall be allowed to 

provide notice to the City of Tupelo, through the provider, of currently or recently used prescription or 

non-prescription drugs at the time of the taking of the specimen.  

 

Confidentiality  

 

All information, interviews, reports, statements, memoranda and test results, written or otherwise, 

received by the City of Tupelo or the provider on its behalf, through its drug and alcohol testing program 

are confidential communications under certain circumstances as allowed by the Mississippi Drug and 

Alcohol Testing Act.  

 

All information obtained, however, shall be the property of the City of Tupelo. The City of Tupelo will 

not release to any person other than the employee or job applicant, information related to drug and alcohol 

test results unless:  

a. The job applicant has expressly, in writing, granted permission for the employer to release such 

information;  

b. It is necessary to introduce a positive confirmed test result into an administrative or judicial 

proceeding where the information is relevant to the hearing or proceeding;  

- 255 -

Item # 24.



                    

City of Tupelo Employee Handbook Policy# 608 

Sec. 6 – Employee Conduct Effective Date   

608 Drug and Alcohol-Free Workplace Supersedes: 1/1/19 

 

 
c. The information must be disclosed to a federal or state agency or other unit of the state or United 

States government as required under law, regulation or order, or in accordance with compliance 

requirements of a state or federal government contract;  

d. Disclosed to a drug abuse rehabilitation program for the purpose of evaluation or treatment of an 

employee; or  

e. There is a risk to public health or safety that can be minimized or prevented by the release of such 

information; provided, however, that unless such risk is immediate, a court order permitting the 

release shall be obtained prior to the release of the information. 

 

 

Contesting a Test Result 

 

An Employee who receives a confirmed drug and/or test result may contest the validity of that result or 

explain it. An employee who has a confirmed positive test result will be informed in writing and may be 

terminated immediately. The employee has ten (10) working days to submit a written explanation as to 

why the test result is invalid, and the employee may request a retest of the original specimen at his or her 

own expense. If the employee explanation is unsatisfactory or if the employee fails to submit a timely 

written explanation, the test will be considered final, and the employee will be terminated.  

- 256 -

Item # 24.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Stephen N. Reed, Assistant City Attorney 

DATE September 28, 2023 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF AN ORDER AUTHORIZING THE CONVEYANCE OF 

CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY LOCATED AT 1112 CHAPMAN DRIVE TO 

THE NEIGHBORHOOD DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION SR 
  

 

Request:  

Please order and approve a donation of real property located at 1112 Chapman to the 

Neighborhood Development Corporation.  

- 257 -

Item # 25.



ORDER 

AN ORDER AUTHORIZING THE CONVEYANCE BY DONATION OF CERTAIN 

REAL PROPERTY LOCATED AT 1112 CHAPMAN DRIVE TO THE 

NEIGHBORHOOD DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION BY VIRTUE OF IT BEING A 

BONA FIDE NOT-FOR-PROFIT CIVIC OR ELEEMOSYNARY CORPORATION 

ORGANIZED AND EXISTING UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF MISSISSIPPI  

WHEREAS, the governing authorities of the City of Tupelo are empowered to act with 

respect to the care, management and control of municipal affairs and its properties for which no 

provision has been made by general law and which is not inconsistent with existing law pursuant 

to Section 21-17-1, et seq. of the Mississippi Code Annotated (1972), as amended, including the 

authority to sell, convey or lease real property on such terms as it may elect that are consistent 

with statutory authority and 

WHEREAS, the City of Tupelo entered into an agreement with the Community 

Development Foundation to promote economic development by revitalizing designed areas 

within the City, which agreement contemplated utilizing the services of the Neighborhood 

Development Corporation to implement and operate the day-to-day activities necessary to further 

the goals of that agreement, a copy of which may be found in the Minutes of the Tupelo City 

Council, Book 133 at Page 51; and 

WHEREAS, by Order of the Tupelo City Council dated August 16, 2022 authorizing the 

purchase of real property located at 1112 Chapman, a Warranty Deed, dated October 5, 2022 and 

recorded in the Office of the Chancery Clerk of Lee County, Mississippi as instrument number 

2022013939, was executed by Jo Ann Griggs in favor of the City of Tupelo, and such real 

property is more particularly described as follows: 

LOT #7, ON THE NORTH SIDE OF CHAPMAN DRIVE, ACCORDING TO AN 

UNRECORDED PLAT OF A SUBDIVISION MADE BY WELCH & COMPANY, 

DATED MAY 5, 1947, AND LYING AND BEING IN THE NORTHEAST 

QUARTER OF SECTION 36, TOWNSHIP 9 SOUTH, RANGE 5 EAST, CITY OF 

TUPELO, LEE COUNTY, MISSISSIPPI AND BEING MORE PARTICULARLY 

DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:  

BEGINNNING AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF SECTION 36, TOWNSHIP 9 

SOUTH, RANGE 5 EAST, AND RUN SOUTH, 425 FEET; THENCE WEST, 500 

FEET TO AN IRON STAKE FOR A POINT OF BEGINNING; SAID POINT OF 

BEGINNING BEING IN THE NORTH LINE OF CHAPMAN DRIVE; THENCE 

NORTH 125 FEET TO A STAKE; THENCE WEST, 50 FEET TO A STAKE; 

THENCE SOUTH, 125 FEET TO A STAKE ON THE NORTH LINE OF CHAPMAN 

DRIVE; THENCE EAST ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF CHAPMAN DRIVE, 50 

FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, ALL LYING AND BEING IN THE 

NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 36, TOWNSHIP 9 SOUTH, RANGE 5 

EAST, CITY OF TUPELO, LEE COUNTY, MISSISSIPPI. SUBJECT TO AN 

EASEMENT FOR UTILITIES ACROSS NORTH FIVE FEET OF THIS LOT.  

- 258 -

Item # 25.



IT BEING INTENDED TO CONVEY THAT SAME PROPERTY HAVING BEEN 

CONVEYED TO THE CITY OF TUPELO, MISSISSIPPI BY JO ANN GRIGGS 

ON OCTOBER 5, 2022 BY WARRANTY DEED AND ON FILE IN THE LAND 

RECORDS IN THE OFFICE OF THE CHANCERY CLERK, LEE COUNTY, 

MISSISSIPPI AS INSTRUMENT NUMBER 2022013939; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Tupelo is desirous that this property be revitalized; and  

WHEREAS, the Neighborhood Development Corporation is a bona fide not-for-profit 

civic and/or eleemosynary corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of 

Mississippi, whose stated purposes are among other things, is to promote public welfare through 

development of low- and moderate-income areas and to foster revitalization or stabilization of 

low- and moderate-income areas; and 

WHEREAS, the subject property is blighted and located in a blighted area; is not needed 

for governmental or related purposes; has not been used and is not to be used in the operation of 

the municipality. The sale of the property in the manner otherwise prescribed by law is not 

necessary for the financial welfare of the municipality; and 

WHEREAS, the use of the property for the purpose for which it is conveyed will 

promote and foster the development and improvement of the community in which it is located, or 

the civic, social, educational, cultural, moral, economic or industrial welfare thereof; and 

WHEREAS, the conveyance by the City of Tupelo to Neighborhood Development 

Corporation of the subject property will foster the redevelopment and improvement of the area in 

which it is located and the civic, economic and industrial welfare of the municipality; and 

WHEREAS, title to the property will revert to the municipality if the Neighborhood 

Development Corporation does not fulfill the purpose for which the property was conveyed and 

satisfy all conditions imposed on the conveyance within two (2) years of the date of the 

conveyance; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Tupelo shall retain all mineral rights that it owns, together with 

the right of ingress and egress to remove same. 

NOW THEREFORE, it is hereby resolved and ordered by the City Council of Tupelo as 

follows: 

1. The prefatory paragraphs of this Order are hereby found and determined to be in 

accordance with the necessary and warranted exercise of its authority in the care, 

management and control of its property, and in the best interest of the health, safety and 

welfare of its citizens by securing necessary interests in real property for the provision of 

utility services. 

2. The Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized to convey by donation to Neighborhood 

Development Corporation the real property known as 1112 Chapman Drive as more 

- 259 -

Item # 25.



particularly described in the above-referenced Warranty Deed wherein the property was 

conveyed to the municipality. 

After a full discussion of this matter, Council Member ___________________moved that the 

foregoing Resolution be adopted and said motion was seconded by Council Member 

__________________ and upon the question being put to a vote, the results were as follows: 

Councilmember Mims voted   _______________ 

Councilmember Bryan voted   _______________ 

Councilmember Beard voted   _______________ 

Councilmember Davis voted   _______________ 

Councilmember Palmer voted  _______________ 

Councilmember Gaston voted  _______________ 

Councilmember Jones voted   _______________ 

 

The motion having received the affirmative vote of a majority of the members present, the 

President declared the motion carried and the resolution adopted. 

WHEREUPON, the foregoing Resolution was declared, passed and adopted at a regular 

meeting of the Council on this the _________day of ___________________, 2023. 

       

      CITY OF TUPELO, MISSISSIPPI 

 

      By: ________________________________ 

            TRAVIS BEARD  

            City Council President 

ATTEST: 

 

________________________________ 

MISSY SHELTON, Clerk of the Council 

 

      APPROVED: 

 

                          ____________________________________ 

      TODD JORDAN, Mayor 

 

____________________________________ 

      DATE 

- 260 -

Item # 25.


	Top
	Item # 1.	ADM: Piominko Day Proclamation October 2023
	Piominko Proclamation Agenda Request 2023
	PROCLAMATION -  Piominko Day 2023

	Item # 2.	DDS: LOT MOWING PUBLIC HEARING OCT 2023
	Public Hearing Lot Mowing Request 10.03.23
	Preliminary Lot Mowing Report for 10-3-23

	Item # 3.	DDS: DEMOLITION PUBLIC HEARING OCT 2023
	Demolition Public Hearing Request10.03.23
	1505 Hillsdale
	1518 Central
	135 Warren Lane

	Item # 4.	COU:MINUTES SEPTEMBER 19, 2023 OCT 2023
	Minutes 9-19-2023
	Minutes 9-19-2023

	Item # 5.	FIN:BILL PAY OCT 2023
	Bill Pay 10-3-2023

	Item # 6.	FIN: Advertising & Promotional Expenditures OCT 2023
	ad approval 10-3-2023

	Item # 7.	FIN:  Municipal Compliance Questionnaire FY 2023 OCT 2023
	municipal compliance questionnaire 2023
	MUNICIPAL COMPLIANCE QUESTIONNAIRE2023

	Item # 8.	ADM:APPOINTMENT MONTGOMERY BERRY POLICE ADVISORY BOARD WARD 1OCT 2023
	M Berry PAB 10-3-2023
	BERRY

	Item # 9.	ADM:APPOINTMENT STEVEN COON POLICE ADVISORY BOARD WARD 5 OCT 2023
	S Coon PAB 10-3-2023
	COON

	Item # 10.	DDS: SPRING HILL CHURCH BELINDA STEWART MDAH CONTRACT OCT. 2023
	Spring Hill Church Contract Agenda Request, 10.03.23
	Tupelo (Spring Hill) Contract

	Item # 11.	DDS: LOT MOWING REQUEST OCT 2023
	Lot Mowing Request 10.03.23
	Preliminary Lot Mowing Report for 10-3-23

	Item # 12.	DDS: DEMOLTION REQUESTS OCT 2023
	Demolition Request, 10.03.23
	1505 Hillsdale
	1518 Central
	135 Warren Lane

	Item # 13.	DDS: LOT MOWING LIENS OCT 2023
	Lot Mowing Liens Request 10.03.23
	Lot Mowing Liens for 10-3-23

	Item # 14.	DDS: DEMOLITION LIEN 1100 CHAPMAN OCT 2023
	1100 Chapman Demo Lien Request 10.03.23
	LIEN TO STEPHANIE DAVIDSON

	Item # 15.	ENG: MTC MINUTES JUL 10 OCT 2023
	Agenda Request MTC Minutes Jul 2023
	July Minutes Signed

	Item # 16.	ENG: MTC MINUTES AUG 14 OCT2023
	Agenda Request MTC Minutes Aug 2023
	August Minutes Signed

	Item # 17.	PD: REJECT BID # 2023-045PD EOD ROBOT OCT 2023
	ITEM-Staff-REJECT BID

	Item # 18.	PD: REQUEST APPROVAL OF USMS TASK FORCE ADDENDUM OCTOBER 2023
	ITEM-Staff-USMS TASK FORCE
	USMS Addendum Order

	Item # 19.	PW: APPROVAL PROPOSED CHANGE ORDER VAN BUREN DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENTS BID NO. 2023-032PW OCT 2023
	AGENDA MEMO PROPOSED CHANGE ORDER 2023-032PW VAN BUREN DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENTS
	CO1 Recom Ltr_09-19-2023
	CO 1_Van Buren Drainage_09-19-202392

	Item # 20.	PW: CONTRACT APPROVAL ENDVILLE ROAD SAFETY IMPROVEMENTS BID NO. 2023-022PW OCT 2023
	AGENDA MEMO CONTRACT APPROVAL ENDVILLE RD WIDENING BID 2023-022PW
	ENDVILLE RD PROJECT BID NO 2023-022PW RECOM AWARD LETTER
	Pages from Agenda Packet 9-5-2023.pdf - Adobe Acrobat Pro
	7 - CONTRACT

	Item # 21.	PW: BID APPROVAL CITY HALL GENERATOR BID NO. 2023-041PW - OCT 2023
	PW AGENDA MEMO BID APPROVAL CITY HALL GENERATOR 2023-041PW CW
	Tupelo City Hall Generator L&M Recommendation Letter
	BID TAB
	SIGN IN SHEET
	LIBERTY ELECTRIC
	ESSE
	JE Stevens Bid Form Tupelo Generator_24536-MC
	TIMMONS BID BOND AND BID FORM
	Scan

	Item # 22.	TWL: BID 2023-044WL B&B SEWER OUTFALL (SRF) OCT 2023
	2023-10-03 Bid 2023-044WL Award - B&B Sewer Outfall SRF
	2023-10-03 Bid 2023-044WL Award - B&B Sewer Outfall SRF

	Item # 23.	TWL: TRAFFIC COMMITTEE SUMMARY & MINUTES OCT 2023
	2023-10-03 Traffic Committee 2023-09-21
	2023-10-03 Traffic Committee 2023-09-21

	Item # 24.	ADM: Employee Policy 608 Amendment; OCT 2023
	608 Agenda Request
	#608 Drug and Alcohol Use (Medical Marijuana) (Drug Testing) (REVISED)

	Item # 25.	ADM: 1112 Chapman NDC Donation; Oct. 23
	Donation to NDC Request (112 Chapman)
	NCD Resolution 1112 CHAPMAN

	Bottom

